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FINANCIAL SECTION

This Section contains the Following Subsections:

Auditors' Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Honorable Members of the Town Council
Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities. the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Portsmouth, Rhode Island, as at and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the
Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial statements are
the responsibility of the Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island's management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosu res in the financ ial statements . An audi t also includes assess ing the accounting principles used
and the significant estimates made by manage ment, as well as evaluating the ove rall financial statement
presentat ion. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the gove rnmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island, as of June
30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the
year then ended in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government AUditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 19, 2012 on our conside ration of the Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island's internal control ove r
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations , contracts
and grant agreements and other matte rs. The purpose of that report is to desc ribe the scope of our test ing
of internal control over financial report ing and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and supplementary pension
and other post-employment benefits information on pages 3 through 11 and 62 through 69 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information. although not a part of the basic financial
statements. is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historic context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island's financial statements. The combining
nonmajor fund financial statements, the combining nonmajor proprietary fund financial statements, the
combining defined contribution pension plans fund financial statements, the combining agency fund
financial statements and other supplementary information are presented for purposes of additionai analysis
and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining nonmajor fund financial statements, the combining nonmajor proprietary fund financial
statements. the combining defined contribution pension plans fund financial statements, the combining
agency fund financial statements and other supplementary information are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Providence. Rhode Island
December 19. 2012
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Fiduciary funds Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit 01 parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government·wide financial statements because the resources of
lhose funds are not available to support the Town's own programs,

The basic fiduciary lund financial statements can be found on pages 21·22 01 this report.

Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can
be found on pages 23-61 of this report.

Other information : In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes. this report also presents
certain required supplementary information. It presents schedules detailing certain pension and OPEB information.
as well as budgetary comparison schedules for the General Fund and the School Department to demonstrate
compliance with their respective budgets . Required supplementary information can be found on pages 62·69 of this
report.

Government-wide Financ ial Analysis

As noted earlier. net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the
case of the Town of Portsmouth, assets exceeded liabilities by $15,437,546 at the close of the most recent fiscal year,
as compared to assets exceeding liabilities by $14,339,327 at the close of the previous fiscal year.

A portion of the Town's net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings. machinery , and
equipment) ; less any related debt used to acquire these assets that is still outstanding. The current year's figure for
invested in capital assets, net of related debt is $13,395,638.

An additional portion of Portsmouth's net assets (.4%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. The remaining surplus in the unrestricted net assets, $1,980,636, is primarily the result of the
School Department's special education tuition costs and salary/benefit costs being less than anticipated.
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Town of Portsmouth Net Assets
June 30, 2012

Governmental activllies Business-type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 $ Change % Change

Current and other assets $ 12,983,243 $ 11,066 ,146 $ (10,623) $ (72,941) $ 12,972,620 $ 10,993,205 $ 1,979,415 18.0%
Capital Assets 28,743,928 29,742,882 2,733,488 2,712,558 $ 31,4n,416 32,455,440 (978 ,024) -3.0%

Total Assets 41,727.171 40,809,028 2,722.865 2,639.617 44,450.036 43,448.645 1,001,391 2.3%

Long-term liabilities outstanding 19,376,665 20,642,750 2,170,486 2,223,238 21,547,151 22,865 ,988 $ (1,318 ,837) -5.8%
Other Liabilities 4,139,882 4,847,703 315,548 297 ,408 4,455,430 5,145,111 (689,681) -13.4%

Total Liabilities 23,516,547 25,490,453 2,486,034 2,520,646 26,002,581 28,011,099 (2,008,5 18) -7.2%

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of 13,342,227 13,131,880 337,289 263,758 13,679,516 13,395,638 283 ,878 2.1%
relateddebt

Restricted 117,652 61,272 117,652 61,272 56,380 92.0%
Unrestricted 4,868,397 2,186,695 (218 ,110) (206.059) 4,650,287 1,980,636 2,669 ,651 134.8%

Total net assets $18 ,210,624 $15,3 18,575 $236,831 $118,971 $18,447,455 $15,437 ,546 $3,009 ,909 19.5%

Governmental activities Governmental activities increased Portsmouth's net assets by $I ,On,934.
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Town of Portsmouth Changes In Net Assets
June 3D, 2012

Governmen tal Activities Business-type Activities To tal
2012 2011 20 12 2011 2012 2011 S Change % Change

Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for services $3 ,125 ,255 $2 ,954 ,145 $1,381,447 $1,422,034 $4,506,702 $4,376,179 $130,523 3.0%
Operating grants and contributions 3,351 ,960 3,582,471 168 ,652 183,077 3,520,612 3,765,548 (244,936) ·6. 5%
Cap ital grants and contributions 293,313 44 1,054 293,313 441 ,054 (147,74 1) -33. 5%

General revenues:
Property taxes and payments in lieu 45,490,728 44,388,491 45,490,728 44 ,388,491 1,102,237 2.5%
State Aid. unrestricted 6,871 ,423 6,937,773 6,871 ,423 6,937,773 (66,350) · 1.0%
Investment and interest income 11,855 10,392 24 11,879 10,392 1,487 t4.3%
Other revenues 1,164 ,085 884 ,770 1,164 ,085 884 ,770 279,31 5 31.6%
Transfers (79 ,435) (21,240) 79 ,435 21.240

Total revenues 60 ,229 ,184 59,177.856 1,629,558 1,626,351 61 .858 ,742 60 ,804 ,207 1.054.535 1.7%

Expenses:
General government 4,607 ,181 5,024,199 4,607 ,181 5,024,199 (417,0 18) -8.3%
Public safety 9,185 ,098 8,810,077 9,185 ,098 8,810,077 375,021 4.3%
Public services 2,791,589 3,557,560 2,791 ,589 3,557,560 (765, 971) -2 1.5%
Community services 1,346,146 1,274,895 1,346,146 1,274 ,895 71 ,251 5.6%
Education 38,514,354 38 ,798,267 38 ,514,354 38 ,798,267 (283 ,913) ·0 .7%
Interest on long-term debt 524 ,720 525,631 524 ,720 525 ,631 (911 ) -0.2%
Capital outlay 320,161 39,727 320,161 39,727 280,434 705.9%
Amortization expense 47,885 69 ,567 47,885 69,567 (21,682) -31.2%
Non·operal ing expense
School lunch fund 628,779 641,843 628,779 641 ,843 (13,064) -2.0%
Transfer station fund 522,349 639 ,453 522 ,349 639,453 (117, 104) -18.3%
Wind turbine generator lund 310,035 310 ,526 310,035 310,526 (491 ) -0.2%
Non-major funds 50,535 14,244 50,535 14,244 36 ,29 1 254.8%

Talai expenses 57,337 ,134 58,099 ,923 1,511 ,698 1,606,066 58,848,832 59 ,705 ,989 (857 ,157) -1.4%

Increase (decrease) in net assets 2,892,050 1,077,933 117,860 20,285 3,009,910 1,098,2 18 1,911 ,692 174.1%
Net assets - beginningof year 15,318,574 14,240,641 118,971 98,686 15,437,545 14,339,327 1,098,218 7.7%

Net ass ets- ending $18,210,624 $15,318 ,574 $236.831 $118,971 $18 ,447 ,455 $15,437,545 $3,009,910 19.5%
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Fin ancial Analysis 01 the Government' s Funds

As noted earlier, Portsmouth uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Gov ernmental1unds The focus of Portsmouth's governmental lunds is to provide information on near-term inflows.
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing Portsmouth's financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned lund balance may serve as a uselul measure of a government's net
resources available lor spending at the end of the fiscal year. As 01 the end of the current fiscal year, Portsmouth's
governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance 01 $9,939 ,282, an increase of $3,739,2 15 in
comparison with the prior year's fund balance. Most of this total amount, $8,435 ,098 constitutes committed , assigned
or unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion, The remainder of fund
balance is non-spendable or restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it is not in
spendable form or it is subject to external restrictions.

The General Fund is the operating fund of the Town of Portsmouth. AI the end of the current fiscal year, committed,
assigned and unassigned lund balance of the General Fund was $5,056,723 , while total fund balance reached
$5,154,637. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare committed, assigned and
unassigned fund balances and total lund balance to total fund expenditures. Committed, assigned and unassigned
fund balances and total fund balance represent 8.8 and 9.0 percent of total general fund bUdgeted expenditures,
respectively, which includes funds transferred to the School Department.

The lund balance of Portsmouth's General Fund increased by $2,590,799 during the current fiscal year.

General Fund BUdgetary Highlights

Actual revenues at June 30, 2012 were more than budgeted amounts by $830,271. The principal reason for this was
greater than anticipated tax collections.

Actual expenditures were less than budqeted amounts by $544,988. The primary reasons for this result were vacant
positions and a delay in borrowing.

Speci al Revenue Fund Budgetary Highlights (School Department)

In the 2011·20 12 fiscal year, School Department net revenues were less than budgeted amounts by $229,601. The
primary reason for this shortfall was not transferring revenue into the school fund from other sources due to less than
anticipated school fund expenditures. These revenues will continue to be available lor use in subsequent fiscal years.

Actual expenditures were less than budgeted amounts by $2,440,181. The principal reasons for this were special
education tuition costs and salaries/benelits being less than anticipated.

Capital Asset and Debt Admini stration

Capital Assets The Town of Portsmouth's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 3D,
2012, amounts to $30,988,504 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
land improvements, construction in progress, buildings, building improvements, furniture and equipment. construction
equipment and vehicles. Current year additions lor general infrastructure assets are also included. The total
decrease in Ihe Town's investment in governmental activity capital assets for the current fiscal year was $978 ,024 .

Long-term Debt At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of Portsmouth had total bonded debt outstanding of
$18,358,720, entirely backed by the tutltaith and credit of the Town. This includes $1,221,000 incurred in Fiscal Year
2011-12.
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Management's Discu ss ion and Analysis

As management of the Town of Portsmouth, Rhode Island (the Town), we offer readers of the Town's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of financial activities 01 the Town lor the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Town's basic
financial statements that follow this section.

Fina ncial Highlights

The Town of Portsmouth's total net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 were $18,447,455 which is an
increase 01 $3,009,909 over the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Net assets at June 30, 2012 included $13,679,516
invested in capital assets, net of related debt, an increase of $283,878 over June 30, 2011; $117,652 of restricted net
assets at June 30, 2012, an increase of $56,380 over June 30, 2011 and $4,650,287 of unrestricted net assets that
may be used to meet the government 's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors, an increase of $2,669,651 over
June 30, 2011.

• Total assets at June 30. 2012 were $44,450,036, which is an increase of $1,001,391 or 2.3% over June 30, 2011.

• Total liabilities at June 30. 2012 were $26,002,581, which is a decrease of $2,008,518 or 7.2% over June 30,
2011.

• The government's total net assets increased by $3,009,910.

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Portsmouth's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $9,939,282 which is an increase of $3,739,215 over June 30, 2011. Approximately 85 percent of
this total amount or $8,434,738 is available for spending at the government's discretion (committed, assigned or
unassigned fund balance).

• At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance for the general fund was $5,154,637 or 9.0 percent of the Fiscal
Year 2011-12 Adopted Expenditure Budget of $57,566,032. This represents an increase of $2,590,799 over June 30,
2011.

• The Town of Portsmouth's total long-term and short-term obligations (Le., general obligation bonds, capital
leases, notes payable, compensated absences, and OPES liabilities) decreased by $1 ,379,262 (6.0 percent) during
the current fiscal year. The key factors in this decrease were the issuance of $1,050,000 in general obligation bonds
and the retirement of $2,529,800 in general obligation bonds.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town's basic financial statements. The
Town's basic financial statements consist of three components : 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide fi nanci al statements The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of the Town's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement 01 net assets presents information on all of the Town's assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
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for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacation leave).

Both of the qovemment-wide financial statements distinguish functions of a government that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the Town include general government, public safety, public works, education and community services.
The Town has five business-type activities. These include the School Lunch Fund, Summer School Enrichment
Fund, Summer School Remedial Fund, Wind Turbine Generator Fund and the Transfer Station Fund.

The government-wide financial statements include only the activities of the Town of Portsmouth . There are no
component units within the Town's jurisdiction.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12·13 of this report.

Fund financial statements A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements . AUof the funds
of the Town can be divided into three categories, governmental funds, fiduciary funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However. unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources,
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful
in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements. it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements . By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions . Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliat ion to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town ot Portsmouth maintains one hundred and two individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances for the general fund and the school unrestricted funds. which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other one hundred governmental funds are combined into a single. aggregated
presentation.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 14-17 of this report.

Propr ietary funds Proprietary funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public
(enterprise funds) or within the government (internal service funds). These activities are financed primarily by user
charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income measurement similar to the private sector .
The proprietary funds of the Town are considered major funds. The Town has no internal service funds. The Wind
Turbine Generator enterprise fund has generated net income of approximately $400,000 in its first three years of
operation. However, in June 2012, the gearbox failed and the wind turbine has not been operational. The Town is
exploring public/private partnerships to restore the wind turbine to an operational status and balance the risk
associated with the operation.

The basic proprfetary fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-20 of this report.
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State statutes limit the amount of general obligation bonded debt a lawn can issue to 3 percent of the net assessed
property values. However, all bonds approved through Slate enabling legislation and voter referendums are exempt
from the limit. At June 30, 2012lhe Town had a debt limit of $97,257,711, which significantly exceeds the Town's
outstanding general debt.

The Town of Portsmouth maintains an "Aa2" rating from Moody's Investors Service on its general obligation debt.

Additional information on the Town of Portsmouth's long-term debt can be found in Note #5 on pages 38-42 of this
report.

Economic Acti vit ies and Facto rs Impact ing Budgets and Rates

New economic development in Portsmouth will be primarily through growth of existing local businesses which may
stimulate additional new development. There are new initiatives that may provide for a variety of new development
possibilities.

Portsmouth has an impressive history as a leader in the marine trades industry. With three world class yacht
companies in Portsmouth, a large community of smaller marine support businesses has developed thai provide a
wide range of specialized services for the boating industry and individual boat owners.

For the past eight years, the Rhode Island Economic Development Corporation, in cooperation with the Town, has
been working with a partnership of marine companies to transfer ownership of excess Navy land. This prime
waterfront land will be key in stimulating expansion for existing and new marine trades. When the transfer is
completed, Portsmouth Marine Partners is poised for expansion. The expansion will accommodate much needed
space for the boat builders and create new facilities for smaller marine support contractors, The transfer of the 30
acres will serve as a model for the future transfer of other larger parcels that the Navy has designated for disposal.
There is very high demand for space in the area.

A survey of the marine companies in Portsmouth indicates that employment continues to be down from 2007 levels,
but is on the rise. It appears that the cluster of local marine trades did not suffer as much as some other areas of
New England. A recent jobs fair conducted by the RI Marine Trades Association was very successful in identifying
employment opportunities and filling numerous full time above average wage positions. Eighteen companies
participated in the event. In spite of the very poor employment picture for the State, principals at the companies
indicate that the worst is over and that many eliminated positions will be reactivated.

Marine companies and associated marine trades have long been a significant contributor to the Rl economy. The
marine industry continues to be identified as a key growth sector for the State. The America's Cup trial races held in
Newport in June 2012 were very successful and served to further stimulate the maritime economy. The rousing
success of the Cup races has led 10 additional major marine races, regattas and associated events to be scheduled in
the area. The race activity provided a big boost for the marine industry, as well as related tourism and hospitality
businesses. The races attracted participants, observers and media from around the world.

In the early '90s. forward looking citizens and local governments saw the need to plan ahead. Years of planning and
gathering of community desires led to the creation of Ihe Aquidneck Island Planning Commission (AIPC). From this
grassroots initiative came the West Side Master Plan (WSMP). The WSMP is Ihe result of eleven years of regional
planning efforts involving all three communities on Aquidneck Island. This unified plan has been unanimously
adopted by all three communities. In Portsmouth, the focus for much of this plan is the potential reuse of 146 acres
of former Navy petroleum tank farms along the Eastern shore of Narragansett Bay. The release of the Navy land has
been a key planning topic for several years. In the spring of 2008, the Navy made it official that the former tank farms
will be made available. The land is ideally situated along the West coast of Aquidneck Island. adjacent to At. 114, the
existing cluster of Melville marine businesses and the Raytheon Company campus. There is much planning and
analysis that must be accomplished to take advantage of the valuable land. The government procedures for selecting
a recipient of the land are extensive and very rigorous.
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Following disposal procedures established by the Navy, the Aquidneck Island Reuse Implementation Authorit y
(AIAIA) is guiding future transfer and development opportunities lor this prime real estate. With this lormal body in
position, the Town is following the federally approved mechanism for the transfer of the unused land for new
development possibilities. The Navy has also put in place a local He-Use Coordinator to shepherd the transfer
process.

The Navy requested the establishment of the AIRIA so that it will be dealing with only one entity. The Town also
created its own Portsmouth Redevelopment Agency (PRA). The local PAA is empowered to own, sell and lease land
on behalf of the Town. Initial ideas for reuse of the Navy land envision a future business park focused on expansion
01the marine trades industry, defense and homeland security businesses, municipal facilities, improved transportation
facilities and open space. There is also interest in creating a solar farm on a portion of the land.

Creating new space lor marine trades and defense work will complement the existing concentration of similar
businesses. The marine trades in the Melville area are in need of expansion space and inquiries have been received
from marine ventures outside the area wishing to locate here. A similar attraction is possible with smaller defense
contractors desiring to be located near Raytheon and the Naval Undersea Warfare Center. Marine trades and
defense and homeland security are two of the key economic growth clusters identified by the State. These industries
receive very active support from State agencies to attract new enterprises and promote existing businesses.

Additional future economic growth is possible on the shores of Narragansett Bay adjacent to the focus area of the
WSMP. Just south of the cluster of marine businesses in the Melville area is the site lor the new Weaver Cove
marina, Necessary OEM and CAMC permits have been approved for a 1,495 Slip marina and related commercial
marine facilities. Commencement of on shore construction has been slowed as portions of the land are contaminated
from prior govemment uses. The potential for the new marina is drawing much attention, as it will ease a scarc ity 01
boat slips in Rhode Island and act as a potential business growth generator. Having the new marina located with the
existing marine companies makes it a win-win, The developer also plans to include facilities for on-shore support
services and housing units in a village setting. By including significant public access to the shoreline, the planned
project is gaining wide support. The completion of all phases of the project will involve over $130 million,

The Town has received endorsement to set aside four acres of the excess Navy land for multi-modal transportation
activity, The site could serve as a parking area lor a future rail shuttle between Portsmouth and Newport. The
existing Newport Dinner train has secured passenger rail cars that can make the service a reality. The Newport
Dinner Train has received grant funding for an upgrade of the existing rail tine located along the West Side shoreline ,
The line currently is used for tourist activity and a dinner train. Tourist visits and special corporate event traffic
continue to grow. In addition to reconstructing the tracks, the train purchased new rolling stock to upgrade the service
offering.

All of the planned development along the West Side is being encouraged through the actions of the Town's Planning
Department. The Town adopted changes 10 the Zoning Ordinance for the creation of Planned Marina Village
Developments and Planned Resort Developments. The zoning ordinances fully support the incorporation of "smart
growth" principles. The zoning ordinances include enforceable performance and preservation standards that will
ensure site development of benefit to the Town, The Planning Department is reviewing the existing zoning process to
identify changes that can expedite permitting procedures.

The Raytheon Company continues to be the largest employer in Portsmouth. The Portsmouth Seapower Capabil ity
Center is the global leader lor naval and marine integrated systems for the defense industry and the civilian marine
community. The company continues with major work in underwater detection and weapons systems as well as Navy
missile systems. It has applied new uses for many 01 its systems in the field of homeland security; both lor
govemment projects and private industry. Raytheon has contracts with the Department of Defense and the
Department of Homeland Security lor shipboard guidance systems and harbor and port protection systems. Working
with a $1.2 million congressional appropriation, it is developing and testing harbor and undersea detection systems to
protect critical infrastructure, Employment levels have been stabilized with continuing work on Navy systems for ajt­
weather carrier landings, Raytheon recently consolidated activity into two primary buildings. With this move, it is
marketing two other buildings and surrounding acreage lor sale or lease, The prime real estate is on busy West Main
Road/Rt. 114 and convenient to off Island access. The land is also near the Naval Base and Naval Undersea
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Warfare Center. The synergy of being located near existing defense and marine companies should make the space
very attractive.

Vacant parcels in the Town Center area are available for development of a mixed use project. Proposed changes 10
East Main Road are planned to create a more pedestrian friendly corridor. The Rhode Island Department of
Transportation has lully endorsed the conversion of the road from four narrow lanes to a series of three roundabouts.
Public feedback at hearings is supportive. A new medical diagnostic services building was opened in the Town
Center adjacent to a medical office building. The new facilities eliminate the need to travel to Newport and Fall River
for medical attention. A new 12,000 sq. It office building opened in 2007 and is now 100% leased.

On West Main Road/At. 11 4, the first two buildings of Clocktower Square are open and 100% lull. New ownership of
the undeveloped portion of the 9 acres has resulted in plans to move forward with another building. If completed, the
$15 million, multi-phased project will consist of 8 buildings. The very attractive facilities have small local retail and
medical offices, including scanning services.

Occupancy in the Portsmouth Business Park is holding steady at around 90% with only one lot unsold. The Park has
21 companies employing 186.

One of the most prominent and attractive properties in the area is the exclusive "Carnegie Abbey Club." The
Carnegie developments include high-end vacation homes and condos which impact town services much less than
conventional residential development. The new marina opened this year, The centerpiece of the project is the 14
story tower consisting of exclusive condominiums, penthouses and amenities. O'Neill Properties, the developer of the
Carnegie projects, acquired 73 acres of waterfront property just north of the Carnegie facilities for its most recent
project, "The Newport Club:' They have approval lor construction of a resort development that will include 152
vacation homes, a small marina and other club amenities. Work has already been completed on a large indoor
equestrian riding and training center as well as model homes 10 market the project.

Portsmouth is fortunate to have a large portion of the town in a Slate designated Enterprise Zone. The Enterprise
Zone program offers incentives through property lax relief for new development and State income tax credits for
adding 10 existing employment levels. As one of eleven areas in the State where special economic incentives are
available, it serves as an additional attraction to locate and expand in Portsmouth. The Ahode Island Economic
Development Council recently approved extension of the Enterprise Zone program for Portsmouth through the year
2014.

The unemployment rate as of June 30, 2012 is 7.1 % (not seasonally adjusted). This is noteworthy as it is a significant
decline from the 2009 high of 11.9%. This compares favorably with an unemployment rate of 9.8% for the State of
Ahode Island and the national unemployment rate of 8.0%.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the Town of Portsmouth's budget for the Fiscal Year 2012·13.

Requests for Information
This report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Portsmouth's financial results. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report for requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Finance Director, Portsmouth Town Hall, 2200 East Main Road, Portsmouth. AI 02871.
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TOWN Of poaTSMQUTH. RHODE ISLAND

S'1I1tHFIent of Net Assets
June 30, 2012

A· ,

Governmental Business-type
Activi ties Activi ties Tolal

ASSETS
Current AlJ5et.:
Cash and cash equivalents • 9,718,972 • 4,974 • 9,723,946
Real estate and personal property tax receivable, net 1,792,948 1,792 ,948
Ambutaoce receivables 238,573 238,573
Due from federal and stale govemments 26 1,874 9,775 271,649
Intemal balances 165,494 (165 ,494 ) 0
Inventories 60 .89 2 14.344 75,236
Prepaid expenditures 1,676 1,676
Other receivables. net 742,814 125,778 868,592

Tot.' CUrrtHt' As.,,'. 12.983 .243 (10.623) 12.972.620

Noncurrent Asaflts:
Capital assets {non-depreciable) 5.523,725 5,523,725
Capital assets (net of depreciation) 22,754,994 2,709,785 25,464,779
Debl lssuance costs, net 216,448 23,703 240 ,15 1
Deterred gain on refundin g 248,761 248,761

Toltll Non-Current Auer. 28.743.928 2.733,488 31.4n ,416

TOTAL ASSETS 41,727,17 1 2,722,865 44,450 ,036

LIASILmES
Current Llablllt/••:
Accoun ts payable 1,004.665 n ,324 1,081 ,989
Accrued interest payable 120,960 4,198 125 ,158
Accru ed expenses 472 ,168 472,188
Current po rtion 01long-term debt 2 ,542,069 234 .026 2.n6,095

Total Current U abllltiea 4,139.882 3 15,548 4,455 ,430

Noncurrent Uaolllt/e.:
Uneamed revenue 270 ,425 10 .275 260 ,700
Accrued conpenseted absences 1,833,275 1,833,275
Net OPEB obligation 3.634,829 3,634.829
long-term uaoumee (net) 13,638, 136 2.160 .211 15.798.34 7
Total Noncurrent Uabllltf.. 19.376 ,665 2,170,486 21,547 .151

TOTAL LIAS/LInES 23.516. 547 2,486.034 26.002,58 1

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets. net 01related debt 13.34 2.227 337,269 13,679 .5 16
Restricted lor specific prog rams 117,652 117 ,652
Unrestrict ed 4 ,868,397 (218.110) 4 ,650 ,287

TOTAL NET ASSETS • 18.210,624 S 236.831 • 18,447,455

See Notes to Basic Financial Statemen ts
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TOWN OFeORTSMoum RHODE ISLAND

Statement 0' Acti vities
For the year ended June 30, 2012

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets

Operating capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

EunctionslPrograms Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities:
General government , 4,60 7,181 , 1,457 ,302 , 73,479 , , (3,076,400) , (3.076,400 )

Public safety 9,185,098 559,735 70,993 136 ,741 (8,417,629) (8,41 7.629)
Public services 2,791,589 36,045 156,572 (2 ,598 ,972) (2.598,972)
Education 38 ,514,354 1,072 ,173 3,055,513 (34 ,386.668) (34,386,668)
Community service 1,346, 146 15 1,975 (1,194 ,17 1) (1, 194 ,171)
Capital outlay 320,16 1 (320,16 1) (32 0, 16 1)
Interest 00 long-term debl 524,720 (524, 720) (524.72 0)

AmortiZation expense 47 ,885 (47,88 5) (47,885 )

To~/QOvernmen~/BC,wities 57,337,134 3 .125 .255 3.35 1.960 293 ,313 (50,566, 606) (50, 566.606)

Business-type Act ivity:
SChool lunch fund 628,n9 458.888 168,652 , (1,239) (1,239)
Transfer station 522 ,349 582 ,454 60 ,105 60 ,105
Wind turbine generator l und 3 10,035 324,197 14.162 14,162
Non-major tcnos 50 .535 15.908 (34 ,627 ) (34. 627)

Tolal business type activity 1.511 .698 1,38 1,447 168,652 38,401 38,401
Totals , 58,848.832 , 4.506 .702 , 3.520.612 , 293.313 (50,566,606) 38 ,40 1 (50 ,528,205)

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes and payments in lieu of taxes 45,490,728 45 ,490,728
State aid, unrestricted 6,871,423 6.871 .423
Investment and interest income 11,855 24 11.879
Other revenues 1,164 ,085 1,164 ,085
'r ransrers (79,435) 79 .435 0

Tota/ general re lfenues 53 ,458. 65 6 79,45 9 53.538.115

Change In Net Assets 2,892,050 117,860 3,009,910

Net Assets· beginning of year 15.318 ,574 118 .971 15 .437,54 5

Net Assets· ending of year , 18.210.624 , 236,831 s 18 ,447,455

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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TOWN Qf PQRTSMQUm RHODE ISLANQ

Bala nce Shee t
Governmflnt. ' Funds

June 30, 20 ' 2

Major Funds
SchOOl Ot her Total

General Unrestricted Governmental Governm ental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS:
Cas h and cash equiva lents $ 8,n4,923 $ 464 ,387 $ 479 .662 $ 9,718 ,972
Real estat e and personal property tax receivable (net) 1,792,948 1,792,948
Due Irom federal and slate governments 164,193 n ,681 26 1,874
Due lrom other funds 119,821 4,355 .525 1,829,399 6,304,745
Amb ulance rece ivab le 374,3n 374 ,an
Other receivables 283 ,592 459 .222 742,6 14

Inventory 60,892 60.892
Prepaid expenditures 1,676 1,676

TOTA L ASSETS s 11,408,229 S 5.004.105 $ 2.645.964 $ 19.258 ,298

UABlunES AND FUND BALANCES
Usb/IItI••:

Accounts payable $ tn,7oo $ 560,720 $ 25,981 $ 764,401
Accrued expenses 114,353 129.212 42,604 286, 169
Due to other funds 4,102,769 1,004 .642 1,031 ,840 6,139,251
Deferred revenue 1,618,506 270,425 1,888,931
Ot her liab ilities 240,264 240 ,264

TOTAL UABIUT7ES 6,253,592 1,694,574 1,370 ,850 9 ,319,016

FUND BALANCES:
Non-spendable 60,892 4,821 65,713
Restric ted 37,022 1,401 ,809 1,438,831
Com mitted 0 3,309,531 111,n6 3,421,307
Ass igned 309,379 309,379
Unassigned 4,747 ,344 (43,292) 4,704 ,052

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 5,154,637 3,309,53 1 1,475 ,114 9,939 ,282

TOTAL UABIUT7ES ANO FUND BALANCES S 11,408,229 $ 5,004,105 $ 2,845,964 $ 19,258 ,298

(CO NTI NUED )

See Notes to Basic Financial Stateme nts
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TOWN Of PORTSMOUTH RHODE ISLAND

Reconc /lfatlon of the GovlHnmental Funds 88lance Sheet (B-f)
to the GovlHnment- Wlde Statement 0'Net Assets (A-')

June 30, 20'2

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - Total Govemmental Funds (B-')

Amounts ,eportsd to' government.1 actlv/tles /n the .t.tament ot nat a.set. differ because:

Capital assets used In Governmental Activities are not current financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

Other long-term assets are recognized as revenue In the period for which they are billed in the
Government-Wide financial statements. but are reported as de/erred revenue (a liability) in Govemmental
Fund nnancter statements.

Allowance for doubtful accounts for ambulance receivables are not recorded in the Governmental
Fund financial statements because they are offset by deferred revenue.

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require current financial resources. "rheretore , interest payable
is not reported as a liability In Governmental FUnds Balance Sheet.

Claims and judgmenls do not require curren t financ ial resources. Therefore , additional accrued expenses
are not reported as a liability in Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

Debt issuance costs . deferred gain on refunding and premium on bonds are deferred and amo rtized over the life
of the related debt in the Government-Wide Financia l Statements, but are reported as an expenditu re and other
financing source in the year of Issuance in the Governmental Fund financ ial statements.

long-term liabilities (including bonds payable. compensated absences and leases payable) are not due and
payable in the current period and , therefore , are not reported In the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

OPES liability is recorded in the govemmental activ ities , but not recorded in the funds.

Net Ass ets ot Governmental Act/v/t/es

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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S 9,939,262

26.278.719

1,818,506

(135, 604)

(120.960 )

(188.019)

465 .209

(18.013,480)

(3.634,629)

$ 18.210,624

(CONCLUDED)
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TOWN Of PO RTSMOUTH RHODE IS LAND

Statement ot Reven~a. Ofhftr FInancing SOUfC".
Elrpendlturell, Othfff F/mmclng Us.,. lind Ctgnge.ln Fund Sa/line • •

Go"'""mtfflttJI Fund.
For the year fHld~Junt130. 2012

MaiOI' Funds
School otner Total

Generlll Umeslricted Governmental Governmental

Food Food Funds sunos
RlJllfHluelJ

General property taxes and payments in lieu of taxes s 46,753.588 $ 46 .7f)3,588

Stale a~ and grants 825.594 $ 5.923.570 $ 2.086.204 8.835.368
Stale Fiscal Stablli:ration Funds 122.259 122.259
Licenses, permits and fees 252.500 252.500
Charges lor services 6 16,814 1,030 ,874 108.639 1,756,327
Melvill e Ponds Campgrounds 209 ,628 209.628
Glen Manor Hoose 389.225 389.225
Rescue W8goll income 517,575 517 ,575
Fines and forfeit ures 638.515 638.575
Interest and Investment income 10.616 1.238 1' .8~

Cont ributions and private grants 7 1,26 1 71 ,261
Other revenues 443,422 110,462 3.018 556.902
Intergovernmental pension conlnbuliOn 1.484.790 1.484 ,190

Tola' fll'venlHJS 50.657.53 7 6.611 .955 2.210.360 61.599.652

ElfpendlturH
Current:

Genera l govemmenl 4.409.952 19,153 4,429,105
Public safety 8.822,846 91,928 6.914,n4
Public wooo 2.304,651 46.313 2,351,024
Education 34.635. 421 1.696.605 36 .334 ,232
Community services:
Public and social services 580 ,160 148,698 729,478
Par1l. & recreation 521,428 67' 522 ,103
Ir'llergovemmeotal pension contribuliOn 1.484.790 1,464.190

Debt se-cce-
Princ ipal payments 2.529 ,800 2,529.600
Interest 615.883 8 15.883
Bond Issuanc e costs 20,650 20,650

Capital:
CaprtaJ expenditures 899.363 699,363

TOlsl exptmdlt uru 19.805 .990 36.120 .211 2.904.995 58 .831.202

Excess (deticiency ) ot revenuee over
(under) e~penditures before other
financing sources (uses) 30.851.547 (21,448.262) (634.635) 2.168.650

Other financing . ourc e. (u.as)
'rrensters in 1,251 ,469 29 ,398,093 5 14,233 31,163.195
Transl ers out (29.5 12.217) (1,129,436) (60 1.571) (3 1,243.230)
Bond proceece 1,050.000 1,050,000

Net other fl fllmclng . ources (uses' (28.260. 148) 28.268.651 962.656 970.565

Net change in lund balances 2.590,199 820 .395 328.021 3,739,2 15

Fund balancas • beginnIng of the yHr 2.563.838 2.489 ,138 1.141.093 6.200.001

Fund balances · ending 0' the year $ 5.154,631 $ 3.309.531 $ 1,475. 114 $ 9.939.282

See Notes to Basic Financial Statem ents
te



TOWN DE PORTSMQUTH. RHODE ISLAND

ReconcJl1at/on of the Statement 01R9venu8tJ, EXpfHldftUffJ. , and Changes In Fund Ba lances
of Governmental Funds (B-2) to fhe Stat"ment 0'Actlvlt le. (A·2)

For the year fHldfld June 30, 2012

8- 3

Net change in fund balances - total governmental lunds (B-2)

Govemmentallunds report capital outlays as expenditures. HOW9ver, in Ina
statement 01 activities the cost otmose assets is allocated over their
estimated usefulIlvea and reported as depreciation expense. This is 1M
amount of capital assets reported in the perlod .

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the Government-Wide
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets, but does not require
the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense
is not reported as an expenditure in the Governmental fund statements,

Long-term compensated absences is reported In the Government-Wide
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets, but does not require the use of
current financial resou rces. Therefore, compensated absences is not reported as
expendi tures in Govemmentalfund financial statements. This is the change
in long-term compensated absences for the year .

Repayment of bonds and capital leases is an expenditure in the Governmental
Fund financial statements, but the payments reduce long-term liabilities in
the Government-Wide financial statements.

$ 3,739,215

912,987

(1,884,706)

136,679

2,544.127

Accrued interest expense on long-term debt Is reported In the Government-Wide
Statement of Activities, but does not require the use of current financial resources .
Therefore, accrued interest expense is not reported as an expenditure in the
Governmental Fund linanclal statements. This is the change in accrued
interest for the year.

Bond proceeds are reported as other linancing sources in the Governmental Fund financial statements ,
However, the proceeds are recorded as Iong-term liabilities in the Government-Wide financial statements

Bond issuance costs are reported as an expenditure in the Governmental Fund
financial statements.

Amortization Of deferred debt issuance costs, premium on bondS and gains on
advance refUnding are not ranecteo in Governmental Fund financial statements.

Bad debt expense is reported in the Government·Wlde Statemen t of Activities and
Changes in Net Assets , but not reported in the Governmental Fund financia l statements.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that are not available in Governmental Funds
are not reported as revenue in the Governmental Fund finar.cial sta tements.

The increase in OPEB liability is not recorded in the Governmental Fund.
The change from prior year is reflected in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets.

Change In net assets ot Govemm6f'l tal Activ it ies

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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42.990

(1,050.000)

20.650

(15,604 )

(21,930)

(1.262,660 )

(269,498)

$ 2.892.050



C · 1

row O f PQRTSMOUm RHODE ISLANQ

Slaf£mw[ qr Ncr AIM"
Proprietary Fund .

June 30, 20 12

School Lunc h Transfer Wind Turbtne Non-majof
Fund Station Generator Fund Funds Tolal

ASS ETS
Curren t a•..,'.:
Cash and cash equiva lent . $ 4,97 4 $ 4,974
Due l rom other governmental un,IS 9,775 9,n5
Due trom other funds \81,52 1 $ n .231 $ 10,171 274,923
Accounts recer.able 56.997 $ 68.781 125,n8
Inventory 14,344 14,344
Debt issuance cosla. ee t 23,703 23.703

Tor41current a.H f. 216.6 14 134,228 92..... 10, 171 453, 497

Non-curren'II'H t.:
Capotel asset.;

Depreciable aseeta- r>el 33.006 204.398 2.472.381 2,709,785
Total non-c u,nJnl "Hr. 33.006 204.398 2,472. 38 1 2,109.785

TOTAL ASSETS 249.620 338,626 2,5&4.865 10 .17 1 3,163.292

UA BILmES
Current lI. bllltl" .:
Bond s payable 34.312 199.714 234,026
Accrued mlere.1payable ua 4,086 4,198
Prllp8id tu,tion 10 ,275 10.275
Due to other funds 185,475 254,942 440,417
Account. payable 70,159 7,\65 n,324

Total current lIablll"~. 165.475 104.583 465.907 10.275 766 ,240

NOfH:urrent II.bll/tl~.:

Bonds payable, ne t 01curr ent por1ion 136,688 2,023.523 2,160,2 11
To /.I non-current IIllbil/tl~. 136,688 2,023.523 2.160, 211

TOTA L UA SILm ES 165,475 241,27 1 2.489.430 10.275 2.926 .451

NU AS S ETS
Invest ed '" capital assets, net 01related de bt 33.006 55. 139 249. 144 337,289
Rese rve lor recycling 42.2 16 42,216
Rese rve tor COf1tingencies 50.291 50.291
Reserve tor r&Pa'l'S 25. 145 25,145
Unre S1ricted 3 1.139 (249, 145) (104! (218. 110)

TOTA L NU A SSETS $ 64. 145 $ 97 ,355 $ 75.435 $ (104) $ 238.831

See Notes to Financial Stale ments
te
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TOWN OF PORTSMOIITH. RHODE ISLAN D

S""ment of R.VlHlIJe" Elfptl n5#/' lind Chll"9.s ln Net Asset.
Propriet.ry Fund.

For IIHtyell' ended Ju". 30. 2012

School Lunch Transfa, Wind Turbine Non-major,,," Slatlon Ge"llrator Fund Funds Total
O~r.t1ng 6...."'11..:

lnrergovemmernal $ 168.652 $ 168.652
O1ho;lr rll~ enue!l 458,888 $ 324 .191 783.08 5
Charge' tor servk:9!1 $ 582,454 $ 15,908 598.362
ToI.1 O~.tlng Re w nuee 627.540 582,454 324 ,197 15.908 l,55O ,099

O"."tlng EXptHlNe:
Cafete~8 operations 625,364 625,364
Transfer StallOn operalloos 522 ,237 522,237
Wind Turt:llne Generator ope rations 48,41 0 48, 4 10
Educatlorl 50.535 50.535
09pree'at,OIl and amortization 3415 151,683 155,096
Toflll Oper.tlng ElfptHlHe 62B,ng 522.237 200,093 50535 1,401 ,644

Income from optffll tlon. (1 .239) 60 ,217 124,' 04 (34 ,627) 148 ,455

Nott-oper.tlng aeVlHlUIIII (Expensee):
jnterest expense (112) (29.686) (29, 798)
Interest Income " "Distribution to To'Ml Genefal Fund (22,472 ) (22 ,472)
~$tribution to S<:hool General Fund (51,784 ) (57 ,784)
Nfl Nt:m-oPfr.tlng RtIvttn.... (E:rPfn..., " ( 112) (109 .94 2) 0 (110,030)

Net Income (Iou) bfJlore tr. n5fe" (1,215) 60 ,105 14,162 (34 .627) 38,425

T'an$!ers In (0Ul) 79.435 79,435

Ch, ng.ln net , ...t. (1 ,215) 60 ,105 14,162 .... .808 117,860

~t , ...,• • beginning of ,'- yetar 65,360 37,250 61,273 (44,91 2) 1113 971

Net . . ..,• • tmdlng of t'- YO ' $ 64,145 $ 97,355 $ 75,435 $ (104) $ 238,631

See Notes To Financial Statements
ta
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roWN QF eoafSMOU l11 RHQDE lS I AND

$IMotm<HJI 01Culf Flo .. ,
Pmpriflfttry Furrd.

FOf ,"'- r-~J_ 3D, 2011

""'" '""'" T'3n11fe, Wind Tlllblne _m""
''''''' Stat"", GeneralOf' ,""". T""

e••11 flo .... /rom ~."nfIKtlv"~.:

Cash recel\l ed I,om customers I ~58.868 I 580. 930 • 335.861 I 2fi.I83 • 1.401.862

Inl....~ 110,$63 170.583
Cash Pil ymen l!ll to "'4>PlHlrstor QOOd. and se"'1e81 (625.~1 (540.998) (39 .444) (SO,S35) (1,256.339)
Calil plOd to e.mploy_ (2.2 62) (22 62)

N« U Mt provldW (uaMJ) by op«lItl"9 « tlv llle. 4 101 39. 93'" 294, 155 (24.352) 313,644

CaM! now, from rtOIH'lIf1t1M I1nMIClnglJCllvllle.:
Opl'trabng 1r3nl1h'r8 (toJ from Q\l'Ier II.itlWI (80 ,256) " .<35 (62 1)

Il\lerlund borrow'll\ll j 4 ,231l (39,500) 24.325 (55,063) (74.489)

Ne4 cu ll u.-d by fIOfH:8p I!llJ tl lJMI(:lng lJCIMtIe. (4,23 1) 09 ,500) \55,931) 24,352 (75.310)

CUll now. trome."ltM-nJlIt«J n""""/ng « 11II1r1l..:
Acquistlon and oonstruelloI'I 01capital a ...,1e \8.879) 18,879)

Proceeds from ,uuanoe 0/ bonds (17 1,434 ) {11 1.434)

1l1l&I811 income " "Principal p.iI'd onbonds 17 1,000 (199.714) (28,114)

Inllll'e91paKlonboods (29 .631) (29.631)

~cqh prOYldH /'rom (UNd) fOI'csplt"l-nIllIt«l " (434) (238.224' (238.634)

11nMW;lng Kfl"ltllf.

NR~lnu.h (100) 0 0 0 ( 100)

C• • " MJd cu " ~uIv.""'..~lnnl"'11 01 lhol .,.. 5,074 0 0 0 5,074

CN " lind r;ph eq""'_" eM 0' the y_ • 4,974 I I • • 4.914

RfICOnCl lIMIon at "., Inc.".". to "., en " pro"'~ by
op«atlng 1ICf1v1t1fl. :

IJlCOm8 (\0!.8) from ope'a~ • (1,239) • 60,2 17 • 124. 1004 • (34 ,627) • 146 ,455

Adlustmenta 10 reconcI le ope<a MlI 'ne<>ma 10 ne t
cash PfO"itled bV (lISIId lor) operabng actPi,nll5'

Oepreclafton and am<)tljzabon 3,415 4,286 151.663 159.384
Change . IIIa_18 and liabohlHla :
(Increase) de<;f"""" In~ I'8C8lvable 1,931 (1.524) 11.664 12.071
lrasa... (clIIC,ea Sll' i(l accouru payaDJe (23.045 ) 6,704 10.275 (6 .068)

Total adjustments s.aae (<'0.263) 17Q,051 10,275 165.389

N« cull pro""*'d by (UHdJ by optIIlfllng 1tCI"'"". I 4 ,101 I 39,934 • 294,155 I (24.352) • 3 13. 840'

See NoIe. 10 Financial Statements
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mWN OF PORTSMQUTH. RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2012

0 -1

Pension Defined
Tru st Contribution OPEB Agency
Funds Pension Plana Trust Fund Fund.

ASSETS
Cash and cas h equivalents $ 49 1,758 $ 395,856 $ 447 ,nS
Investments, al lair value 34,831,956 $ 2,300 ,431
Accounts Receivable 8 1,144 6,323 243 ,044
Prepaid expenses 189,663
l eit er 01 credi t 9,100

TOTAL ASSETS 35,594,52 1 2,300,431 402,179 699,920

LIABILITIES
Othe r Liabilities 189 ,955
Deposits held in custody lor others 699,920
TOTAL LIABiLiTIES 189.955 699 ,920

NET ASSETS
Held in trust lor pension and OP ES benefits 35,404 ,566 2,300,431 402 ,179

TOTAL NeT ASSETS 35 ,404,566 2,300,431 402,179

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 35 ,594.521 $ 2,300,431 $ 402,179 $ 699,920

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH. RHODE ISLAND

Statement of Changes In Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

For the year ended June 30. 2012

Pension Defined
Tru st Contribution OPEB
Fund Pension Plans Trust Fund

Additions:
Contributions :
Employer $ 2,662,801 $ 49,075 $ 865,136
Plan member 609,412 117,609 66,657

Tota l contributions 3,272,2 13 166,684 931,793
Investment income:
Net gain (loss) on value of investments (954,683) 64,205 590

Net investment income (loss) (954,683) 64,205 590

Total additions 2,317,530 230,889 932,383

Deductions:
Benefi ts paid 2,479,186 217,272 732,096
Admi nist rative and othe r 114,731 17,566 1,500

Total deductions 2,593,917 234,838 733,596

Changes in net assets (276,387) (3,949) 198,787

Net assets - beginning of year 35,680,952 2,304,380 203,392

Net assets - ending of the year $ 35,404,565 $ 2,300,431 $ 402,179

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements
22
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TOWN OF PQRTSMOUTH, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Portsmouth was established in 1638 and incorporated as a Town in 1640. The Town of Portsmouth is
governed largely under the 1958 Home Rule Charter, which provides for a Council-Administrator fonn 01
government. The Town provides various services including education, solid waste disposal, public safety (police
and lire), public works, (engineering, highway, recycling, public buildings, parks and recreation), social services
and general govemment services.

The Town complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements. Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict wilh or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following SUbsequent private-sector guidance for
their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to the same limitation. The Town has elected not
10 follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The accounting and reporting framework and the more
significant accounling policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this note.

As a general rule, the effect of inter-lund activity has been eliminated from the Government-Wide
financial statements.

Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the government for financial reporting purposes. management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting
entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 39. Under GASB Statement No. 39.
the financial reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of its component units.
Component units are legally separate entities that meet any one of the following three tests:

Test 1 - The primary government appoints the voting majority of the board of the
potential component unit and:

... is able to impose its will on the potential component unit and/or

... is in a relationship of financial benefit or burden with the potential
component unit;

Test 2 - The potential component unit is fiscally dependent upon the primary
government; or

Test 3 - The financial statements would be misleading if data from the potential
component unit were not included.

The following entities were considered for classification as component units for fiscal year 201 1:

... Portsmouth School Department

... Portsmouth Water and Fire District

... Portsmouth Redevelopment Agency

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

t. SUMMAR Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Reporting Entity (Continued)

Although the Portsmouth School Department met certain criteria of the tests listed above. it is not
deemed to have separate legal status apart from the Town. As a result, the financial data of the Portsmouth
School Department has been included as a major special revenue fund within the Town's financial
statements.

The Portsmouth Water and Fire District is a separate legal entity that appoints its own board
members. sets its own billing rates and is not fiscally dependent upon the Town of Portsmouth. As a result,
the Portsmouth Water and Fire District has not been included as a component unit.

The Portsmouth Redevelopment Agency is a Town committee bUdgeted in the Town's general fund
and does not meet the definition of a separate legal entity. As a result, the Portsmouth Redevelopment
Agency has not been included as a component unit.

The Town of Portsmouth does not have any component units.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The Town has implemented the following new accounting pronouncements:

./ GASe Statement No. 64 - Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Account ing
Termination Provisions - an amendment 01GASe Statement No. 53, effective for the Town's
fiscal year ending June 30 , 2012. The adoption of this Statement did not have an impact on
the Town's financial position or results in operation.

The Town will adopt the following new accounting pronouncement in future years:

./ GASe Statement No. 60 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession
Arrangement. effective for the Town's fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

./ GASe Statement No. 61 - The Financial Reporting entity: Omnibus an amendment of GASe
Statements No. 14 and No. 34 , effective lor the Town's fiscal year ending June 30 , 20 13.

./ GASe Statement No. 62 - Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30 , 1989 FASS and AICPA Pronouncements, effective for the
Town's fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

./ GASe Statement No. 63 - Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources. Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, effective for the Town's fiscal year ending June 30,
2013.

./ GASe Statement No. 65 - Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, effective for
the Town's fiscal year ending June 30, 20 14.

./ GASe Statement No. 66 - Technical Corrections - 20 12 - an amendment of GASe
Statement No. 10 and No. 62, effective for the Town's fiscal year ending June 30. 20 14.

(CONTINUED)
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row OF PDRTSMOUTH. RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Recently Iss ued Accounting Standards (Continued)

./ GASB Statement No. 67 - Financial Report ing for Pension Plans - an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 25 , effective for the Town's fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

.; GASB Statement No. 68 - Financial Reporting lor Pensions - an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27, effective for the Town's fiscal year ending June 30, 20 15.

The impact of these pronouncements on the Town 's financial statements has not been determined.

Basis of Presentation

The accounting of the Town is organized on the basis of funds , each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set 01 self-balancing accounts
that comprise its assets, liabilities , fund equity. revenues. and expend itures or expenses, as appropriate.
Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds to demonstrate legal compliance
and to aid management by segregating transactions related to specific Town functions or activities.

Govemment-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole . They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities . Governmental activit ies generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and othe r non-exchange revenues. Business-type
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

These statements are presented on an "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis
01 accounting. Accordingly, all of the Town's assets and liabilities, including capital assets and long-term
liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets . The Statement of Activities presents
changes in net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which
they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. The types of
transactions reported as program revenues for the Town are reported in three categories: (1) charges for
services; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and contributions .

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the report ing entity are organized into funds each of which is considered
to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing
accounts which const itute its assets , liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditure/expenses. Funds are
organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on
major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories . A fund is considered major if it is the primary
operat ing fund of the Town or meets the follow ing criteria:

(a) Total assets , liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental
or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that
category or type , and

(CONTINU ED)
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row OF PORTSMOUTH, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30. 2012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

(b) Tota l assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental
fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the cor responding total lor all governmental
and enterprise funds combined.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Reven ues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds
aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in fund balances
and changes in lund balances as presented in these statements 10 the net assets and changes in net assets
presented in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

All governmental funds are accounted for using the spending or 'current financial resources"
measurement focus and the modilied accrua l basis of accounting. Accordinqly. only current assets and current
liabilities are included on the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances presents increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and othe r
linancing uses) in net current assets . Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized
in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the
current period. Accordingly, revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to
accrual (genera lly 60 days after year end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources that have
been treated as susceptible to accrual by the Town are property tax and intergovernmental revenues .
Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred .

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund is used to account 10f' resources devoted to financing the general services
the Town perlorms lor its citizens .

School Unrestricted Fund

The School Unrestricted Fund is used to account for the budgeted resources devoted to
financing the general operations of the School Department.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets, a Statement of
Revenues , Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets, and a Statement of Cash Flows. Proprietary
funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting . Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included on the
Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are
recognized in the period in which the Iiabilily is incurred .

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (ContinUed)

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the
primary operations of the lund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues . Operating
revenues are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other
expenses are reported as non-operating expenses.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The Town has three Major and two Non-Major Enterprise Funds as follows:

Wind Turbine Generator Fund- Major

The Wind Turbine Generator Fund is used to account for the operations of the Town's wind
turbine generator.

Transfer Station Fund- Major

The Transfer Station Fund is used to account for the Town's transfe r station operations . This
fund did not meet the criter ia for reporting as a major fund. However, management elected to present
the fund as a major fund.

School Lunch Fund- Major

The School Lunch Fund is used to account for the School's cafeteria operations. This fund did
not meet the criteria for reporting as a major fund. However, management elected to present the fund
as a major fund.

Summer School Enrichment Fund- Non-Major

The Summer School Enrichment Fund is used 10 account lor School's summer school
enrichment program operations.

Summer School Remedial Fund· Non-Major

The Summer School Remedial Fund is used to account for the School 's summer school
remedial program operations.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements (Not included in govemment-wide statements)

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of
Changes in Net Assets. The Town's Fiduciary Funds include Pension Trust Funds, OPES Trust Fund
and Agency Funds. Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations or other governments . The Fiduciary
Funds are accounted for on a spending or ' eccnomtc resources" measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Agency funds are purely custodial and do not involve the measurement of results
of operations.

(CONTINUED)
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row Of PQRTSMQUTH, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30. 2012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund FInancial Statements (Continued)

Pension Trust Funds

These funds account for resources held in trust lor members and beneficiaries of the Town
administered defined benefit pension plan and defined contribution pension plan.

OPEB Trust Fund

This fund accounts for resources held in trust lor members and beneficiaries of the Town
administered retiree health plan.

Agency Funds

These funds account for assets held by the Town and the School as agent lor various student
groups and individuals : Town Activity Funds and Student Activity Funds.

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are lega lly
or administratively restricted to expenditures lor specific purposes. The Town's only major special
revenue lund is the School Unrestricted Fund, which provides education to the Town 's children. The
non-major funds include the following: CDeG , PPD Sex Offender grant, Illicit Discharge Detection,
Bulletproof Vest Grant, EDC Workshop, Homeland Security Grant, EMA WM D, Commemorative Bench
Program, Impact Fees, Jules Buela Grant. Click it or Ticket, Active Shooter Grant, Town Commons
Grant, EMPG Shelter Generato r, Alcohol Survey, AIPC West Side Project , Explorer Program , Fire
Alarm Maintenance, Fire Plan Review, Historic Records Fund, Joh n Haskins Memorial Fund, Lower
Glen Farm Preservation, Fed Equitable Sharing Drug, Melville Recreation Committee, NARC Forfeiture
SEC, Blue Riptide Impaired/Drunk, Blue Riptide Speed Management, Senior Center Grant, Substance
Abuse, Tech Upgrade & Doc Preservation, Tobacco Survey, Miscellaneous GranVDonation, Fire
Smoke Detector Inspection, Waste Water Facilities Plan, Byrne Grant, EMA Meds Plan and Pods, Low
Income SpaylNe uter, Sheller Spay/Neuter, Child Passenger Safety Grant, EECBG ARRA,
Conservat ion Commons, Trust Safety Grant, Portsmouth Tree Commission, Friends of Glen Park, VIS
Grant, Gate Receipts, IDEA & IDEA ARAA, Tille tn. 111& IV, AARA Federal Jobs Fund, Race to the Top
Grant, Perkins, Literacy Dropout . Technology , E2T2 MCI ARRA, Substance Abuse Task Force .
RISCA.. Student Equity Investment. Gym Fundraising, Concord Consortium, Early Ch ildhood, United
Way Melville Playground, Stimulus ARAA, Van Beuren Grant, Champlin Foundation, DANA Science,
Phase II Project, AISCA Creative Movement, and Feinstein Grant.

Capital Project Funds

These funds are used 10 account lor financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of specific capital projects or items: Glen Manor, 05-06 Warrants. 06-07 Warrants. 07·08
Warrants , OS..()9 Warrants, 09- 10 Warrants, 10·11 Warrants, 10-12 Warrants, Various Equipment and
Capital Fund.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH RHODe ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Permanent funds

These funds are used to account for assets held by the Town where the principal portion of this
fund type must remain intact, but the earnings may be used to achieve the objectives of the fund:
Sherman Trust Fund and Cemetery Fund.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management 10 make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Assets, LiabilitIes and Fund Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of the Statement of Cash
Flows, the Town considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents. Under Rhode Island laws, depository institutions holding deposits of
the State, its agencies or governmental subdivision of the State, shall at a minimum, insure or pledge
eligible collateral equal to 100% 01 the deposits which are time deposits with maturities greater than
sixty days. Any of these institutions which do not meet minimum capital standards prescribed by federal
regulators shall insure pledged collateral equal to 100% of the deposits, regardless of maturities.

Investments

Investments are recorded at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses from changes in la ir value
are recognized as investment income.

Accounts Receivable and Taxes Receivable

Accounts receivable and taxes receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. The allowances are calculated based on the age of the individual receivables. The
allowance lor uncollectible property taxes in the governmental and government wide statements
amounted to $340,656 at June 30, 2012 . Property taxes which were levied on July 1 of the current year
and other delinquent balances are recorded as receivables.

Short·Term Interfund RecelvablesIPayables

During Ihe course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for
goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due from other
funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet.

Inventory

Inventory is maintained on a perpetual system and is stated at cost (first in, first out method of
inventory valuation). Inventory is generally recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN Of POR TSMOUTH RHODE ISL AND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS
JUNE 3D, 20 12

t. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Cont inued)

Revenues

Substantially all govemm ental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are billed and collected within
the same period in which the taxes are levied. In applying GASe No. 33 to grant revenue, the provider
recognizes liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes receivables and revenue when the appl icable
eligibility requirements, inc luding lime requirements, are met. Resources transm itted before the elig ibility
requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by the recipient. Program
revenues generally cons ist of contr ibut ions, grants and charges for services (l.e., licenses, lees, etc.) .

Expenditures

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred.

Capita l Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets are reported in the Government-W ide Statement of Net Assets, but are not reported in
the Governmental Fund Financial Statements.

All capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital asset s
are recorded at the lair market value as of the date received. The Town follows the policy of not cap italiz ing
assets with a cost of less than $5,000 and a useful life of less than 1 year. Net interest costs related to
construction projects are capita lized during the construction period. Such costs were not incurred during fiscal
2012 .

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of assets or materially extend
assets ' lives are not included in capital assets .

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the following usefu l lives:

Deferred Revenue

Description

Land improvements
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Motor Vehicles

Useful Life

20 years
20 - 30 years
10 - 50 years
4 - 20 years
6- 30 years

In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements , deferred revenue represents funds received in
advance of being owed or receivables which will be corrected and included in revenues of future fiscal years. In
the General Fund, deferred revenues relate to uncollected property taxes levied on the 1st of July 10be payab le
on July 31 (with provisions to be paid quarterly), plus delinquent balances less property tax amounts due as of
June 30 and received 60 days thereafter.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

1, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ContinUed)

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

Property Taxes

Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year they are levied and become available. To be
considered available, property taxes must be then due and collected during the year or within 60 days
subsequent to year-end. Property taxes not considered available are reported as deferred revenues.

The Town is permitted by State Law to levy property taxes. Current tax collections for the Town were
approximately 96% of the lotal 2010 levy.

The Town's fiscal 20 11-2012 property taxes were levied on July 1, 2011 on assessed valuations as of
December 31, 2010. Upon levy, taxes are due September 1 or may be paid quarterly by September 1,
December 1, March 1, and June 1. Failure to make payments by due dates will result in a lien on the taxpayer's
property.

Rhode Island general laws restricts the Town's ability to increase either its total tax levy or its tax rates
by more than 4.25% over those of the preceding year. Total taxes of $45,807,376 resulting from tax rates of
$22.50, and $13.91 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for motor vehicles, real estate and tangible property, and
business inventory, respectively, were levied on July 1, 2011.

In tergovernmental

Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and rece ived
annually. For non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded as soon as all eligibi lity requirements
imposed by the provider have been met. For expenditure dr iven grants , receivables are recorded when the
qualifying expenditures are incurred and aU other grant requirements are met.

These receivables are considered 100% collectible and, the refore , do not report an allowance for
uncollecttbies.

Interfund Transactions

T ransactions between funds have been eliminated in the government-wide financial statements but
fUlly presented within the governmental fund financial statements with no elimination made betwee n or within
funds.

lntertund activity within and among the funds of the Tow n have been classified and reported as follows :

Reciprocal interfund activities :

Interfund loans are repo rted as interfund receivables in the lending fund and interfund
payables in borrower funds.

Interfund services are reported as revenues in the seller fund and as expenditures or
expenses in the purchasing fund.

Interfund transfers are reported in governmental funds as other financin g uses in the funds
making transfers and as ether financing sources in the funds receiving transfers. In
proprietary funds transfers are reported after nonoperating revenues and expenses.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

1. SUMMAR Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, L/ablfitles and Fund Equity (Continued)

Interlund Transactions (Continued)

Non-reciprocal interfund activities:

Interfund reimbursements are repayments from the lund responsible for part icular
expenditures or expenses to other funds that initially paid for them . Reimbursements are not
displayed separa tely within the financial statements.

Compensated Absences

Under the terms of various contracts and agreements, Town employees are granted vacation and sick
leave in varying amounts based on length of service. Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability based on the
accumulated benefits earned at June 30. Sick leave benefits are based on the sick leave accumulated at June
30 by those employees who are currently eligible to receive termination payments and those employees for
whom it is probable they will become eligible to receive termination benefits in the future. The liability is
calculated at the rate of pay in effect at June 30. 2012 .

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the Government-Wide financial statements.
For the Governmental Fund financial statements. accumulated vacation and sick leave has been recorded as a
current liability to the extent that the amounts are expected to be paid using expendable available financial
resources. The balance of the liability not paid with expendable available financial resources is not recorded in
the Governmental Fund financial statements.

Accrued LlabJlJtlesand Long·Term Debt

All accrued liabilities and long-te rm debt are reported in the Government-Wide financial statements.

For the Governmental Fund financial statements, the accrued liabilities are generally reported as a
governmental fund liability if due for payment as of the balance sheet date regardless of whether they will be
liquidated with current financial resources. However, claims and judgments and compensated absences paid
from governmenta llunds are reported as a liability in the Fund financial statements only for the portion expected
to be financed from expendable available financial resources. Long-term debt paid from governmentallunds is
not recognized as a liability in the Fund financial statements until due. For other long-term obligations, only that
portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial sources is reported as a fund liability of the
governmental fund. The lace amount of debt issued is reported as other financial sources.

Bond Premiums and issuance Costs

In the Governmental Fund financia l statements, bond premiums and issuance costs are treated as
period costs in the year issued . Bond issuance costs are included in debt service expenditures and bond
premiums are reflected as other financing sources.

In the Govemment·Wide financial statements, bond premiums and issuance costs are deferred and
amortized over the term of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bond premiums are presented as an
addition to the face amount of the bonds payable whereas issuance costs are presented as other assets. Bond
premiums are reported as other financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses.

(CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

to SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and fund Equity (Continued)

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for fund
expenditures are recorded in order to reserve portions 01 applicable appropriations, is employed in the
governmentallunds.

Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

(a) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt . Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

(b) Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by
1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 01
other governments, or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

(e) Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted"
or 'tnvested in capital assets, net of related debt",

Fund Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance in accordance with GASa Statement No. 54, Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. Fund balance is classified as non-spendable,
restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned as described below:

• Non-Spendable - the amount of fund balance that cannot be spent because it is either not in
spendable form or there is a legal or contractual requirement for the funds to remain intact. At the
end of each fiscal year. the Town's Finance Director and School Department's Director of Finance
and Administration will report the portion of the fund balance that is not in spendable form as Non­
Spendable on the annual financial statements.

• Restricted - the amount of fund balance that can only be spent on specific expenses due to
constraints on the spending because of legal restrictions, outside party creditors, and
grantor/donor requirements. The Town's restricted fund balance amounts are considered to have
been spent when an expenditure has been incurred satisfying such restrict ion. At the end of each
fiscal year, the Town's Finance Director and School Department's Director of Finance and
Administration will report restricted fund balance amounts that have applicable legal restrictions
per GASa 54.

• Committed - the amount of fund balance that includes the portion 01the spendable fund balance
but has constraints on the spending that the Town Council has imposed upon itself by a formal
action by vote. This constraint must be imposed prior to the fiscal year end, but the specific
amount may be determined at a later date.

(CONTINUED)
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Con tinued)

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

Equity Class ifications (Continued)

• Assigned - the amount of fund balance that includes the portion of the spendable fund balance
that reflects funds intended to be used by the govemment for specific purposes assigned by
information operational planning. The assigned fund balance represents a "plan" for spending the
amount, but it is not restricted or committed. The authority to "assign" fund balance has not been
delegated by Ihe Town Counc il.

• Unassigned - the amount of fund balance that is in the General Fund and includes all spendable
amounts that are not otherwise contained in the class ifications listed above, and therefore, not
subject to any const raints or intended use. Unassigned amounts are available for any purpose.
These are current resources available for which there are no external or self-imposed limitations or
set spending plan. Although there is generally no set spending plan for the unassign ed port ion,
there is a need 10 maintain a certain funding level. Unassigned fund balance is common ly used for
emergency expenditures not previously considered. In addition, the resources classif ied as
unassigne d can be used to cover expenditures for revenues not yet received. At Ihe end of each
fiscal year, the Town's Finance Director will report the portion of the unassigned fund balance and
will maintai n an unassigned fund balance of no less than 8% and no more than 16% of total
General Fund BUdgeted Operating Expenditures in order to accommodate immediate cash flow
and needs for unantic ipated expenditures and/or emergencies.

The Town maintains a spending policy in accordance with GASe Statement No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This policy states the Town shall , when possible,
expend funds beginning with those funds that have the highest level of restriction tirst. and will spend
those funds with the lowest level of restriction last. It shall be the Town's Finance Director's and School
Department's Director of Finance and Administration's responsibility to ensure the Town's expend itures
are appropriately classified based on the restrictions (both external and internal) of the revenue and fund
baJance(s) in accordance with the above policy. See Note s lor current year classification 01 fund balance.

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the Government-Wide financial statements.

Claims and Judgments

The Town is exposed with respect to risks including, but not limited to, property damages , personal
injury and workers' compensation, In the governmental fund financial statements, expenditures for claims and
jUdgments are recorded on the basis of whether the liability has matured in the current period. The Town and
the School Department are members of The Trust. The Trust was established to offer a viable alternative to
commercial insurance for public entities through intergovernmental pooling of risk. The Trust is a protected, self­
insurance plan. The Town pays annual premium for its liability, property and worker's compensation coverage.
The membership participation agreement provides that, in return for the payment of the annual premium, the
Trust member transfers the financial responsibility for loss, but only according to the conditions of coverage and
up to the stated maximum amount of insurance purchased by the Town or School Department. In the
Government-Wide financial statements, Ihe estimated liability for all claims and jUdgments is recorded as a
liability and as an expense.

(CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
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2. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2012 as follows:
ENDING

Governmental Activit ies: BEG INNING AETlAEMENTS BALANCE

BALANCE ADDITIONS AND TRANSFERS AT eI3Oi1 2
Nondepreciable assets:

La"" $ 4.037 .922 $ 4,037,922

Land easements 1,420,000 1,420 ,000

Construction in Progress 58.969 $ 65.803 $ 58,969 65 ,803

Total capital assets not being depreciated 5,516.891 65,803 58 ,969 5,523,725

Depreciable assets:

Land Improvements 637,848 637 ,848

Buildings 21.825,672 21.825 ,672
Buildings and improvements 6,048.102 528 .974 6.577 ,076

Machinery and equipment 5,079 .804 527.277 5,807 ,081

Construction equipment 396,909 396 ,909

Infrastructure 19.298,067 55,287 19,353 ,354

Vehicles 4,758 ,163 48,772 320.740 4.486 ,195

Total capital asse ts being depreciated 58.044 .565 1.160 .310 320.740 58,884 .135

Lass: acconutatec depreciation lor:

Land improvements 255 .222 28 ,888 284 .110

Buildings 14,245,610 411.266 14,656,876

Buildings and improvements 1,045,002 269.815 1,314 .617

Machinery and equipment 3,219 ,674 478 ,575 3,898.249

Construction equipment 314 ,707 11,130 325,837

Infrastructure 13.053 ,533 407,394 13.460 ,927

vemctee 2,177,270 277.838 166.583 2.288 .525

Total accumu lated dep recialion 34.311.018 1.884 ,706 166,583 36,029 ,141

Go vemmfHItal Actlv lt l" .
Capital a.ur., net $ 29,250.438 $ (658,593) $ 213,126 $ 28 .378.719

Bualn8fJ.-typ. actlvlt lea BEGINNING AETlAEMENTS BALANCE

SALACE ADDIT10 NS AND TRAN SFERS AT~12

Nondepreciable assets:

La"" $ 37,251 $ 37 ,251

Total capital assets not being depreciated 37 ,251 37,251

Depreciable assets :

Land improvements $ 8.879 8.879

Machinery allCl equipment 3.035,193 171,434 3 ,206,627

Tota l capital assets being depreciated 3.035 ,193 160.313 3.215,506

Less: accumulated depreciation tor:

Land improvements 0 222 222
Machinery and equipment 385 .734 157,016 542.750

Total accumulated depreciation 385.734 157 ,238 542.972

Bus ln"u-typ6 Activities
Cspltal aSMt. , nflt $ 2,686.710 $ 23.075 $ $ 2.709 ,785

(CONTINUED)
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2. CAPITAL ASSETS (ContInued)

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General government .
Public safety .
Public works .
Education .
Community service .

Total depreciation expense ..

$ 65,056
292,483
519.022
890,749
117.396

$1.884.706

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows:

School lunch .
Transfer Station .
Wind Turbine Generator .

Total depreciation expense .

3. BUDGETARY AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE

$ 3,415
4.286

149 ,537

$157,238

The General Fund and the Public School Operations Fund are subject to an annual operating budget.
The annual operating budgets' appropriation amoun ts are supported by revenue estimates and can be amended
by either a special financial voter referendum or by the Town Council.

Actual revenue and expenditures in the Budgetary Basis Statements of Revenues and Expenditures for
the General Fund and the Public School Operations Fund are presented on the budgetary basis which includes
the net effect of non-budgeting for certain other items. Thus, the actual revenues and expenditures differ from
those in the Governmental Fund financial statements which are presented in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The following individual funds reported deficits in the unreserved fund balances in the fund financial
statements at June 30 , 2012.

PPD Sex Offender .
Blue Riptide Speed Managem ent.. .
Child Passenger Safety _ .
08·09 Warrants .
09- 10 Warrants ..
IDEAPart B ..
Title I .
Title II .
Race 10 the Top .
Perkins .
Feinstein Grant .

$(89)
$(40)

$(188)
$(18.884)

$(111,417)
$(19)

$(43 ,947)
$(7,317)
$(1 ,600)

$(19 1)
$(46)

These deficits will be funded through loan proceeds. granlfunds or transfers from other funds.

(CONTINUED)
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3. BUDGETARYAND LEGAL COMPLIANCE (Continued)

Legal Debt Margin

The Town's legal debt margin as set forth by State statute is limited to three percent of the totaltaxable
assessed value which approximates $97,257,711. As of June 30, 2012, the Town was in compliance with this
State statute. The debt subject to the debt limitation is based on Ihe type of debt that is used.

4. CASH DEPOSITS and INVESTMENTS

Deposits

Deposits are in various financial institutions and are carried at cos t, which approximates market value.
The carrying amount of deposits is separately displayed on the balance sheet as "Cash" and included $ 1,450 of
petty cash.

At year-end. the Town's carrying amoun t of cash deposits was $4,032,694 and the bank balance was
$4,632,656. Of the bank balance, the entire amount was covered by Federa l Depository Insurance.

Total cash deposits .
Add: Petty Cash .
Add: U. S. Government money market funds .
Less: Fiduciary funds cash, including time deposits (not included in the

Government-wide statement) ..

Total cash and cash equivalents reported In the financial statements

$4,032,694
1,450

7,025,192

(1,335,390)

$9 723.946

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution. the Town will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are
in the possession of an outside party. The Town has a formal deposit policy for custodia l credit risk, which
follows State Laws as described below.

Under Rhode Island General Laws. depository institutions holding deposits of the State, its agencies or
governmental subdivisions of the State. shall at a minimum, insure or pledge eligible collate ral equal to one
hundred percent (100%) of the deposits which are time deposits with maturities greater than (SO) days. Any of
these institutions which do not meet minimum capital standards prescribed by federal regulators shall insure or
pledge eligible collateral equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the deposits, regardless of maturity.

Investments

Investments are stated at lair value for investment pools and historical cost for all other investments .

Concentration of Credit Risk

At June 30. 2012, the Town had a diversified portfol io in its Pension Trust Funds and was not deemed
to be concentrated in anyone investment category. Although all the investments were held in mutual funds,
these investments were in a wide range of companies and various industries enabling the Town to minimize its
risk.

(CONTINUED)
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4. CASH DEPOSITS and INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Interest Rate Risk

The Town's investments are held in mutual funds . These investments do not specify an interest rate .
The rate of return is dependent on operating results and economic condit ions.

Concentration of Credit RIsk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of financia l institution failure, the Town's investments
may not be returned. The Town does not believe that it has a significant custodial credit risk as all the
investments are registered and held in the name of the Town.

Pension Fund,
Rating

Investment Percentage Fair Value IMoody/S&P

Mutual Funds:
DFA EmergingMarkets · Core 3,82% $1,417.545 NJA
DFA Emerging Markets· Value 2.23% 828.981 NJA
DFA 5 Year Global-Fixed Income 9.80% 3,638,082 NJA
DFA International-Equity 7.33% 2,720,44t NJA
DFA Intemational RE · Securities 2.47% 916,953 N/A
DFA International Small Cap 3.66% 1,359,175 NJA
DFA International Small Com 1.22% 451,620 NJA
DFA t Year Fixed Income t6 .31% 6.058,398 NJA
DFA RE . Securities 3.7t% 1,378,849 N/A
DFA 2 Year Global · Fixed Income 6.53% 2,423,413 NJA
DFA US Core Equity 2 16.83% 6,25t ,745 N/A
DFA US Large Cap Value 8.tO% 3,006,488 NJA
DFA US Vector Equity 11.80"/" 4,380,267 NJA
Stable ValUe/Money Market Funds 5.34% 1,981,224 NJA
Bonds Funds 0.06% 21,410 NJA
Balance/Asset Allocation Funds 0.5t % 190,745 NJA
US Stock Funds 0.26% 95,395 NJA
International Stock Funds 0.04% 15,605 NJA

Pension Funds Total tOO.OO% $37,136.336

5. LONG-TERM AND SHOR T-TERM OBLIGA nONS

The Town issues general obligation bonds to provide lunds for the acquisiti on of equipment, as we ll as
construction and improvements to capital facilities . General obligation bonds have been issued for both gene ral
governmental and school department activities. In addition , general obligation bonds have been issued to refund
previously outstanding gene ral obligation bonds,

Rhode Island general laws cap the amou nt of each municipality's general bonds that may be
outstanding to 3% of its assessed property values. Exceptions apply to bonds financed from nontax revenues
and special exemptions are granted for other purposes as well , The assessed value of the Town's propert ies at
December 31, 2010 was $3,241,923.704, limiting the amount 01 nonexcepted general obligation bonds
outstanding to $97,257,711. At June 3D, 2012, bonds oulstanding totaled $18,358,720 .

(CONTINUED)
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5. LONG-TERM AND SHORT-TERM OBLIGAn ONS (Continued)

The following is a summary of changes in Iong·term debt fO( the year ended June. 30. 2012:- -
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5. LONG-TERM AND SHORT· TERM OBLIGATlONS (Continued)

Amounl """'b
of onginal Date of 0_01 Balence , Balance, ,- DueWiltlin

De.cripllon 01 Purpo se
'"~

,~

__
Mam my ",..,." ......... RlKi_ ",..,." .... Dr.. Year

Capl", 'ease payable :

Hawlell Pacl<ard eq uipmen1le ase $41 ,111 113112010 ", 60% 113112013 ee.sse 1".326 22.0 10 1,"1 5 12.860

se.ase ''' ,326 22,010 1"U5 12.860

Ente rprise Fund.lo~Term Debt

Ge-rMn1obligati on bo nda:

Trans/et Slalion ConstructiOn PrOfOCl $171,000 61t2l2012 1,326% """"" 171,000 171.000 34,3'2

Wind Turbine Construction Project $2,600 ,000 11/412008 1.15% 12/151"2022 2.000,000 "3.'" 1,906,667 >2.'" 173.333

Wind Turbir>e ConslrucUon Project $<00.000 W"""" acos, 7/1!Y2023 342 .952 26,381 316 ,571 6.705 26.38 1

Tota l 8n tef'prleelund 10"9"lllnn debt 2,422,952 171,000 199.71" 2.394.238 es.saa 23.(.026

To"" ong-lllnn obligatio n, S 25.4601,849 S 1."95.073 S 2,917,375 S 2" .0012.5017 I 642.099 S 2.820.935
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5. LONG-TERM AND SHORT·TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

At June 30, 2012 the annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation, revenue bonds and loans for general long-term debt are as
follows:

FISCAL YEAR ENDING

June 30,

GENERAL OBLIGATION ANQ LQANS

PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL

2013

2014

2015

201.

2017

20 18-2022

2023-2026

$2,542 ,069

2,276 ,228

2,011 ,528

1.909,828

1,354,829

4,675,000

1.195,000

$15.964,4 82

$534,397

465.400
40 1,422

347,343

286 ,078

763,233

117.638

$2 ,915.51 4

$3,076,466

2,741,631

2,4 12,950

2,257,171

1,640,907

5.438.233
1,312,638

$18,879 .996

At June 30, 2012 the future minimum lease payments to be paid on the lease are as follows:

FISCAL YEAR ENDING

Jun,, 30,

CAPITAL LEASE PA YABLE

PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL

2013

2014

$12,860

9 .150

$22 ,010

'790,.7
'957

41

$13.650

9.317

$22 .967
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. LONG·TERM AND SHORT-TERM OBLIGA TlONS (Continued)

At June 30, 2012 the annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation and revenue
bonds for enterprise fund long-term debt are as follows:

FISCAL YEAR ENDINO

June 30,

GENERAL OBLIGATION
PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL

6. LEASE REVENUE

2<>13
2<>' 4
2<>15
2<>,.
2<>17

2018-2022

2023·2024

$234 .026

233.886

233,886

233,886

233,886

999 .920

224.748

$2.394.238

$29 .318

26,384

23.403

20,420

17,448

46,939

1.556

$165.468

S263,344

260 ,270

257,289

254,306

251.334

1,046.659

226,304

$2.559.706

The Town receives lease rental payments for a communication tower. Future minimum rental payments
to be received for the lease are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30,

20 13 .
20 14 .
20 15 ..
20 16 .
Total. _ .

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

Governmental
Activities

$85.643
89.638
93.671
97.905

~366 ,857

Through their operations, the Town and the Schoo l Department are exposed to various risks of loss
related. but not limited to. torts, general liabilily, errors and omissions, property losses due to theft . damage, or
destruction. and employee injuries. each of which is insured through a pub lic entity risk pool. The Town and the
Schoo l Department are also exposed to risk loss related to claims for unemployment , for which the Town and
the School Department retain the risk of loss.

(CONTINUED)
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7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Town and the School Department are members of the Rhode Island lnterlocal Risk Management
Trust (the Trust), a nonprofit public entity risk pool which provides insurance coverage to participants in
exchange for an annual premium and a pro-rata share of certain administrative expenses. Coverage is provided
in accordance with each member's policy, subject to maximum insurable limits and deductibles, through a
pooling of risks among participants, supplemented by commercial reinsurance for excess losses . Management
believes the Trust's reserves 10 be adequate to meet all reported claims, as well as an estimate of potent ial
claims for losses incurred but not reported . Accordingly, no accrual has been made for potential liabilities arising
from risks once they have been transferred to the Trust. The Town and the School Department are members of
the Trust, a joint purchasing group which provides health and dental insurance coverage to participants in
exchange for a premium . There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage during the year
ended June 30, 2012 .

Upon joining the Trust, members execute a member agreement. That document, pursuant to which the
Trust was established and operates, outlines the rights and respons ibilities of both the members and the Trust.
Members of the Trust part icipated in the Trust's health insurance plan adm inistered by Blue Cross Blue Shield of
Rhode Island (SCSSRI).

Using the rate calcu lations prepared by SeSSRI for individually rated entities. the Trust sets annual
contr ibution rates for the subscribers of each member lor each program offered . The Trust agreement requires
that those contr ibution rates be set at a level sufficient. in the aggregate, to satisfy the fund ing requirements of
the Trust. The contributions of each member are deposited in the genera l fund. and are used to pay for claims,
reinsurance and all administrative expenses . The Trust agreement provides lor an annual independent audit of
its financial statements.

The Group agreement provides the Trust's Board of Directors a discretionary, fully allocable
assessment feature with respect to specified circumstances. After it has been a member of the Trust for an initial
three year period, a member may withdraw from the Trust by providing the Trust's Board of Directors with 90
days notice.

8. INTERFUND BALANCES

The Town reports interiund balances between many of its funds. The totals of all balances agree with
the sum of interfund balances presented in the lund statements.

Interfund rece ivables and payables are as Ictlows:

General Fund
School Unrestricted Fund
Non-Major Govemmental Funds
Proprietary School Lunch Fund
Proprietary Transfer Station Fund
Proprietary W ind Turb ine Generator Fund
Non-Maier Proprietary Funds

Total

43

$

$

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds

119.821 s 4.102.769
4.355.525 1.004.642
1.829.399 1.031 .840

187,521 185.475
77.231

254.942
10,171

6.579 .668 $ 6,579.668
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS
JUNE 30.2012

9. FUND BALANCES

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Type Definitions, the District has classified governmental fund balances at June 3D, 2012 as
follows:

At June 3D, 2012 Non-Spendable Fund Balance consisted of the following:

Inventory

Funds held by contractual requirements

Total Non-spendable Fund Balance

At June 30, 2012 Restr icted Fund Balance cons isted of the follow ing:

Melville land acqu isition

Parks and recreation

Public services

Law enforcement and lire preven tion

Educat ion

Various future capital project operations

Total Restricted Fund Balance

At June 30, 2012 Committed Fund Balance consisted of the following:

Comm itted for various capital projects

Committed for Education

Total Committed Fund Balance

At June 30, 2012 Assigned Fund Balance consisted of the following:

Open Space projects

Total Assigned Fund Balance

44

$60.892

4.821
$65.713

$37,022

3.079

187.280

126.8 02

390.112

694 .536
$1.438.831

$111.776
3,330,247

$3.442.023

$309.379
$309.379
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

10. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEBl - Town Employees

Plan Description

The Town maintains and administers a single-employer OPES benefit plan that covers all Town employees.
The plan provides health benefits to eligible retired Town employees and their beneficiaries. The plan's
provisions may be amended by the Town and the Trustees of the plan. The trust is accounted for as an
OPES trust fund in the Town's financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

a. Basis of Accounting

The OPES activity is accounted lor on the accrual basis of accounting. Contributions are
recognized when they are due, pursuant to formal commitments and contractual requirements.
Investment income is recognized when earned. Expenses (benefits and administration) are
recognized when they are due and payable in accordance with terms of the plan. Administration
costs are generally financed through the Town's General Fund.

b. Classes of Employees Covered

As of July 1, 2010 (date of the last actuarial valuation) membership data was as follows:

Active employees
Inactive employees:
Retirees
Total plan members

106

36
142

The Town established a Trust Agreement (OPES Trust) effective March 8, 2010, and has started to pre­
fund OPES liabilities as well as funding on a pay-as-you-go basis. The employees of Public Works, Fire
and Police contributed .25%, 1.5% and 1.0% of salaries respectively to the OPES Trust for the year ended
June 30, 2012. The total employee contributions to the OPES trust was $66,657 for the year ended June
30,2012. The Town pays 100% of the cost of the individual health care and dental insurance tor all retired
eligible employees except for Public Works employees who contribute 20% of the medical and dental
premiums. The Town pays the cost of the health care and dental insurance until the retired employee is
eligible for Medicare benefits. Expenditures for the benefits described above lor the year ended June 30,
2012 were $732,096.

(CONTINUED)
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to. POST EMPLOYMENTHEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued)

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPES) - Town Employees <Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPES Obligation

The Town's annual OPES cost (expense) is calculated based upon the annual required contribution
(ARC), an amount aetuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GAse Statement 45 . Th e
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cos t
each year and amort ize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. The
following table shows the components of the Town's annual OPES cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed to the plan, and changes in the Town's net OPES obligation.

Annual required contribution

Interest on net OPES obligation

Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPES cost (expense)

Implicit rate subsidy

Contributions made

Increase in net OPE S obligation

Net OPES obligation - July 1, 2011

Net OPES obligation - June 30, 2012

$ 1.248.914

133,827

1170.7111

1.212.030

(77.166

1876,223l

258 .641

2,553,945

$ 2,812586

The Town's annual OPE e cost, the percentage of annual OPES cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPES obligation is as follows:

Fiscal Percentage of Net
Year Annual Annual OPES OPEB
Ended OPES Cost Cost Contributed Asset/(Obllgatlon)

6/3012010 $1.569 .039 41% $(2.030.262)
6/30/2011 $1.315 .857 60% $(2.553.895)
6/30/2012 $1.212.030 78% $(2,8 12.586)

(CONTINUEO)
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10. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued)

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPES) - Town Employees (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progres!

The required supplementary information, which follows the notes to the financial statements.
presents multi-trend information about whether the actuar ial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over Ume relative 10 the actuarial accrued liability for benefit s. Listed below are the details of
the funding progress of the OPES - Town Employees with a valuation date of July 1, 201 1. which is the
most recent report avai lable.

Actua rial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets (AVA)
Unfunded actuar ial accrued liability (VAAL)
Funded ratio (actuaria l value of plan assetslAAL)
Covered payroll (active plan members)
VAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

$ 12.527.599
(203.392)

12,324,207
1.6%

6,574,560
187.5%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examp les include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to basic financ ial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial liabilit ies for
benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The accom panying schedules of employer contributions present trend information about the amounts
contributed to the plan by employers in comparison to the ARC, an amou nt that is actuariaHy determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis. is projected to cover normal cost for each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilitles (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.

Projections of benefits for financ ial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are des igned to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspect ive of the calculations.

The projected unit credit cost method was used in the July 1. 20 10 actuarial valuation. Actuarial
assumptions included a 5.24% investment rate of return (net of adm inistrative expenses). Only assets that
have been contributed are considered available for liabilities lor purposes of the valuation. The Town does
use other assets to pay the liabilities on a pay-as-you-go basis at the present time. The actuarial
assumptions for healthcare cost trend is growth of 10% for 2011 and decl ining by .5% per year until 5% is
reached for health care, 5% for 2011 and declining by .25% per year unti14% is reached lor dental and 4%
lor 2011 and declining by .25% per year until 3% is reached for vision. The 5% and 4% growth is used on
a go- forward basis . The UAAL will be amortized over a closed thirty year period.

(CONTINUED)
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10. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued)

Other Post ·Employment Benefits (OPES) - School Department Employees

Plan Description

The SChool Department maintains and administers a single-employer OPES benefit plan that covers all
School Department employees with lifteen years of service. The plan provides health benefits and dental
insurance benefits to eligible retired employee s and their benefic iaries. The plan's provisions may be amended
by the Portsmouth School Committee and the Trustees of the plan. The OPES activity is accounted for in the
School Unrestricted Fund in the Town's financial statements.

Summary of SignifIcant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

a. Basis of Accounting

The OPES activity is accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Contri butions are recogn ized
when they are due, pursuant to formal commitments and contractual requirements. Investment
income is recognized when earned. Expenses (benefits and administration) are recognized when
they are due and payable in accordance with terms of !he plan. Administrative costs are generally
financed through the School Unrestricted Fund.

b. Classes of Employees Covered

As 01July 1, 2010 (date of the last actuarial valuation) membership data was as follows:

Funding Policy

Active Employees
Inactive employees:
Retirees

Total plan members

327

93
420

The SChool Department has not yet established a Trust to pre-lund OPES liabilities. The amounts due
for these benefits are funded on an at-will basis. In 2011, the School Department paid 100% of the cost of
individual health care insurance and dental insurance benefits for all retired eligible employees, AFSCME and At
Will employees lor six years, NEA (Teachers) and Administrators lor nine years, capped at the premium cost at
the time of retirement. If a retiree chose not to participate in the medical plan, the retiree would receive a 50%
reimbursement of the cost of a single coverage for a six year period, capped at the premium cost at the lime of
retirement.

In 2012, the School Department changed the retiree health benefits provisions. The Schoo l
Department's explicit subsidy will be discontinued once the retiree becomes Medicare eligible, even i1 they are
still within the first six years of retirement. Medicare eligible retirees may not be enrolled in the Schoo l
Department's plan unless they are among the grandfathered current retirees who can remain in the School
Department's Medicare Supplement plan. Premium reimbursement benefit lor employees who decline hea lth
care at retirement will be discontinued once the retiree is eligible lor Medicare, even if they are still within the first
six years of retirement.

The School Department funds post retirement benefits on a pay-as-you go basis. Expenditures lor the
benefits described above lor the year ended June 30, 2012 were $296 ,382.

(CONTINUED)
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10. POST EMPLOYMENTHEALTH CARE BENEFITS(Continued)

Other Post-Employment Seneflts (OPES) - School Department Employees (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Maners (Continued)

Annual OPES Cost and Net OPES Obligation

The School Department's annual OPEe cost (expense) is calculated based upon the annual required
contribution ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASe
Statement 45, The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to
cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed
thirty years.

Annual required contribution

Interest on net OPES obligation

Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPES cost (expense)

Implicit rate subsidy

Contributions made

Increase in net OPES obligation

Net OPES obligation - July 1, 2011

Net OPES obligation - June 30, 2012

$ 592,410

32.455

(4Q,9231

577.942

(296.382)

(270,7031

10,857

811,386

$ 822,243

The School Departm ent's annual OPES cost, the percentage of annual OPES cost contributed to the
plan and the net OPES obligat ion are as follows:

Fiscal Percentage of Net
Year Annual Annual OPES OPEB
Ended OPEe Cost Cost Contributed AssetiCObllqatlon)

6130/2010 $5 11.670 63% $(400,934)
613012011 $ 1.064.164 61% $(811,386)
613012012 $577.942 96% $(822.243)

(CONTINUED)
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10. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued)

Oth er Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) - School Department Employees (Conti nued)

Fun ded Status and Funding Progress

The required supplementary information, which follows the notes to the financial statements, presents
multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over lime relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Listed below are the details of the funding
progress 01 the OPEB with a valuation date of July I , 2011, which is the most recent report available .

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assetslAAL)
Covered payroll (act ive plan members)
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

$ 7,207 ,872

7,207.872
0%

$19,457.646
37.0%

Actuarial valuations 01 an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumpt ions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determ ined
regarding the funded status 01 the plan and the annual required contr ibutions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to basic financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value 01 plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative 10 the actuarial liabilit ies for
benef its.

Actu ari al Methods and Assumptions

The accompanying schedules 01 employer contributions present trend information about the amounts
contr ibuted to the plan by employers in comparison to the ARC, an amount that is actuartally determ ined in
accordance with the parameters 01 GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis , is projected to cover normal cost for each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by Ihe employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The projected unit credit cost method was used in the July I , 2010 actuarial valuation. Actuarial
assumptions include a 4.0% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses). Only assets Ihat
have been contributed are considered available for liabilities for purposes of the valuation. The Schoo l
does use other assets to pay the liabilities on a pay-as-ycu-qc basis at Ihe present time. The actuarial
assumptions for healthcare cost trend is growth of 10.0% fOf2011 and declining by .5% per year unt il 5% is
reached for health care costs . The 5% growth is used on a go-forward basis. The UAAL will be amort ized
over a closed thirty year period.

(CONTINUED)
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11. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITTMENTS

Pend ing or threatened lawsui ts against municipal governments arise in the ordinary course of
operations. Generally, in the opinion of the adm inistration. Ihe ultimate resolution of any legal actions will not
result in a material loss to the Town. However , at June 30, 20 12, there are several cla ims against the Town for
which the Town's legal counsel is unable to determine the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome or the amount
or range of potential loss .

Under Ihe terms of federal and state grants, periodic com pliance audits by the grantors or their
representatives are required and, consequently, certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate, and
result in re imbursement 10 the granto r agencies. The amount. if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed
by the granting agencies cou ld not be determ ined at this time. Town officials believe that such disallowances. if
any, would not be material. Currently, there is no review taking place.

State and federal laws and regulations requi red that the Town place a final cover on its landfi ll on
Prudence Island and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site on an onqoinq basis. Th e
Rhode Island Department of Environmental Management (DEM) has issued notice that the Town, along with
certain private parties, is a potenti al Responsible party to perform remedia tion of private land in Island Park that
was Ihe site of a town dumpl1andfill l rom the 1950s until the early 1970s, when it was closed pursuant to
envi ronmental regulations then applicable. The OEM has issued a not ice of intent to enforce arising out of the
alleged nonperformance of a remed iation plan proposed , and to be performed, by the current owner of the
property. Potential expe nditures or contributions by the Town for remediation of the site are undeterm ined.

On September 15,2010, Ihe Department of Environ mental Management issued a notice of violation
(NOV) 10 the Town for failure to prevent or mitigate the discharge of sewage from storm wate r drainage pipes
and other sources in the Island Park and Portsmouth Park neighborhoods into the Cove and Sakonnet River.
The NOV ordered the Town to com plete a facil ities plan and initiate construction of a wastewater treatment
system. The NOV assessed a penalty of $186,019 to the Town. After consulting with professional engineers,
the Town is not in agreement with the Dep artmen t of Environmental Management's position in this matter. The
Town has not initiated construction of a wastewater treatment system and has not paid the penalty. The Town
is currently working with legal counsel to formulate a response to the NOV and a hearing date has not been
scheduled.

The School Department participates as part of the East Bay Collaborative for the school lunch program
administered by the Compass Group, USA, Inc. through its Chartwells Division under five one year agreements .

The School Department has a five year agreement, through June 30, 20 15, with First Student to provide
busing lor the School Department based on the rate schedule specified in the agreem ent. Busing costs
associated with this agreement totaled approximately $1,717,407 for the year ended June 30, 2012.

As of June 30, 2012, the School Department has encumb rances of $89,2 51 which is reported as
committed fund balance in the School Unrestricted Fund.

(CONTINUED)
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/2. PENSION PLANS

Town Retirement Plan

Plan Description

The Town Retirement Plan is a single employer, contributory defined benefit pension plan which
provides retirement. disability and death benefits to all full-time employees of the Town except School
Department personnel certif ied by the Rhode Island Department of Education (Certified Employees) who are
eligible to participate in the Employees' Retirements System of the State of Rhode Island. Police and Public
Works employees hired on or after July 1, 2010 are not entitled to receive normal benefits. The Plan was
established in accordance with the Town Charter and State statutes. The plan is reported as a Pension Trust
Fund in the Town's financial statements. As of July 1, 2012, employee membership data lor the Town
Retirement Plan is as follows:

Active members ................................................................................................... 178

Retired members................................................................................................. 101

Terminated with vesting ...................................................................................... 13

Disabled members 10

Beneficiaries of deceased members -.lQ.

Total................................................................................................................... ~

Benefit Pro visions and Contributions

The following benefit provision and contribution requirements were established and may be amended
by Town ordinance.

•

•

Plan participation commences on the first day of month coinciding with or following the date of hire, it the
employee chooses to participate in the Plan. Elected officials and certified employees of the School
Department are not eligible to participate in the Plan.

The normal retirement date lor Police and Fire employees is upon completion of twenty years of credited
service. The normal retirement date for Town Hall, School and Public Works employees is the later of age
60 or the completion or ten years of service.

(CONTINUED)
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12. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Town Retirement Plan (Continued)

Benefit Provisions and Contributions (Continued)

• Any participant, who has attained his or her normal retirement date, as defined in the plan, is eligible for a
normal retirement benelit. The monthly benefit payabte upon normal retirement is based on average
monthly salary multiplied by credited service as follows:

Police Employees

Fire Employees

Town Hall Employees

School Employees

Public Works Emptoyees

60% of average month ly earnings reduced prorated for
service less than 20 years plus 2% for 5 additional
years beyond 20 years to a maximum of 70%. Does
not apply to Police employees hired after July 1, 2010.

60% of average monthly earnings prorated for service
less than 20 years plus 2% for 7 additional years
beyond 20 years to a max imum of 74%.

60% of average month ly earnings prorated for service
less than 20 years plus 2% for additional years beyond
20 years to a maxim um of 74% except for PMEA
employees whose normal benefit is 2.5% of average
monthly earnings times years of credited services
(maximum 27 years).

2.5% of average monthly earnings multiplied by years of
credited service and further prorated lor service less
than 20 years of service.

50% of average monthly earnings reduced prorated for
less than 20 years of service. Employees who are age
60 with 20 years of services receive an additional 2.5%
for each additional year beyond 20 and age 60
(maximum 67.5%) of average monthly salary multiplied
by credited service. Does not apply to Public Works
employee s hired after July 1, 2010.

Pension benefits are determ ined using the annual earnings averaged over the last three years for Town
Hall union employees, the highest of the last three years earnings for Town Hall (non-union), Fire, Police and
Public Works employees, and the average of the highest three years earnings for School employees.

School and Public Works employees who have reached age 55, have 20 years of service and are within
5 years ot thea normal retirement date may elect 10 retire early. The retirement benefit is the benefi t accrued to
the early retirement date reduced by Ihe ratio of credited service at Ihe early retirement divided by the number of
years the employee would have had at the normal retirement dale . Working beyond the normal retirement age is
allowed by the applicable collective bargaining agreement if applicable fitness standards are met.

(CONTINUED)
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12. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Town Retirement Plan (Continued)

Benefit Provisions and Contributions (Continued)

The Plan includes disability benefits for members who are totally disabled lor 6 months. The benefit
equals the benefit accrued to the date of disabili ty reduced by the ratio of credited service at disability divided by
the number of years the employee would have had at the normal retirement date. Police and Fire have a work­
related disability pension which provides 72% 01 annual earnings for the date of the disab ility retirement. Police
and Fire have an ordinary disability retirement at 50% of the average of the highest two consecut ive years for
police and three consecutive years lor fire.

The pre-retirement death benefits are as follows :

Police. Fire, Public Works and Town Hall

School

30% of the final five year average earnings payab le to
the unmarried spouse plus 10% of the final live yea r
average earnings payable to each minor child under 21
(maximum 50% of the final live year average earn ings).

1000/0 of Joint & Survivor benefit is payable to the
spouse.

All employees with 10 years of credited service have a nonforfeitable right to the accrued benefit as of
the date of termination 01 employment payable at their normal retirement date. Employees who do not meet the
vesting requirements are paid their contr ibutions plus 5% interest at terminat ion.

Employees are required to contribute to the Plan as follows:

Fire employees

Police employees

School employees

Town Hall employees

Public Wot1<s employees

Town Hall management

54

10% of gross pay; Exception-the Fire Chiels and the
two Deputy Fire Chiefs contribute 6.5% of earnings.

8% of earnings. No cont ributions for employees hired
on or after July 1, 2010 .

Employees hired on or after July 1. 1991 contribute 6%
of earnings . Employees hired prior to July 1, 1991
contribute 2% of earnings.

No contributions required from employees hired prior to
July 1, 1991. Employees hired on or after July 1, 1991
contribute 5% of earnings.

Union employees are not required to make
contributions. Management and nonunion employees
contribute 5% of earnings. No contributions for
employees hired on or after July 1,2010.

For employees hired on or after July 1, 2004 the 5.5%
contributions will cease once the employee earns the
maximum benefit.

(CONTINUED)
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12. PENSIONPLANS (Continued)

Town Retirement Plan (Continued)

Benefit ProvisIons and Contributions (Continued)

The Town is required to contribute an amount determined in accordance with the actuarial valuation.

Actuarial methods and significant assumptions

Basis of Accounting - The Town Retirement Trust Fund's financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions
are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to
provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with terms
of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments - Investments are reportable at fair value.

The Town's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Town Retirement Plan over the
preceding three years are as follows:

2012 201 1 2010

Annual pension costs $ 2,662.80 1 $ 2,514,420 $ 2.590.523

Actual contr ibution 2.662.801 2.514.420 2.590 .523
Net pension obligation NONE NONE NONE
% of annual pensions costs contributed 100% 100% 100%

The annual required contribution was determined as part of an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2010.
Significant actuarial methods and assumptions are as follows:

Actuarial Cost Method

The entry age normal actuarial cost method has been used to determine both the actuarial accrued
liabilities and annual required contributions to the Plan. Under this method. the normal cost is the amount
calculated to be the level percentage of pay necessary to fund the prospective benefits from each employee 's
entry age to retirement age. The actuarial accrued liability. which is re-determined for each active participant as
of each valuation date. represents the theoretical accumulation of all prior years' normal costs for the present
participants as if the plan had always been in ettect. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability represents the
excess of the actuarial accrued liability over the valuation assets.

Asset Valuation Method

Pension assets are valued at their fair value as established by quotations from applicable national
securities exchanges. Valuations of accrued liabilities, pension assets and annual requirement contributions for
the Plan were performed annually through June 30, 2012.

(CONTINUED)
55



TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

12. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Town RetIrement Plan (Continued)

Assumptions

1. Mortaliry

2. Interest Rate

3. Salary increases

4. Disabil ity

5. Cost of Living Adjustments

Funded Status of Plan

RP2000 Combined Healthy Table

8.00% per annum

Projected 4% increase per year

100 % (school, public works and town) and 160% (fire and police)

1.7%-3.0%

The required supplementary information which follows the notes to the financial statements presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing and decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Listed below are the details of the funding progress
with a valuation date of July 1, 2011 which is the most recent report available from the State who administers
this plan:

Actua rial Value of Asset
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)
Unfunded AAL (UAAL)
Funded Ratio
Covered Payroll
UAAL as a percentage of cove red payroll

$ 36.496, 791
$ 73,686,863
$ (37.190,072)

49 .5%
$ 8,388,446

443.3%

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (as
understood by the employees and management) and include the type of benefit provided at the time of each
valuation. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effect s of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. consiste nt with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

Employees' Retirement System ot th e State of Rhode Isl and ('ERS")

Plan Descr /ptlon

All full-time teachers, including superintendents, principals, school nurses and certain other school
officials in the School Department are considered Certified Employees and are elig ible to participate in the ERS,
a cost-sharing multiple-employer public retirement system. EAS provides retirement. death and disability and
health care benefits, all of which are established by State statue. The payroll for employees covered by the
System for the year ended June 30, 2012 was $16,668,189. The School Department's total payroll for the year
ended June 30, 2012 was $20,762 ,260. ERS issues a publicly available financial statement that includes the
financial statements and requ ired supplementary information for EAS. That report may be obtained from the
Employees' Retirement System of Rhode Island, 40 Fountain Street, Providence , AI 02903, or by accessing
their website at www.ersrLorg.

(CONTINUEO)
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12. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Employees' Retirement System of the Slate of Rhode Island "ERS"} (Cont inued)

Plan Description (Continued)

In November 2011. the State enacted The Rhode Island Retirement Security Act of 2011 (the Act) as
described in S1111A and H6319A. The Act makes significant changes to the Employee Retirement System
and becomes ettectlve July 1, 2012. Two of the mos t significant changes resulting from the Act are a change
in structure from a def ined benefit plan to a hybrid plan that includes a smalle r defined benefit plan and a
supplemental defined contribution plan. In addition, there was a re-amortization of the Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability to 25 years from the current 19 year schedule as of June 30. 2010 .

The ERS was established under section two of chapter 2334 of the Rhode Island Public l aws of 1951
and placed under the management 01the Retirement Board lor the purpose of providing retirement allowances
for employees of the State of Rhode Island under the provisions of chapters 8 to 10. inclusive. of Til le 36 . and
public school teachers under the provisions of Chapters l S to 17. inclusive. of Title 16 of the Rhode Island
General laws. The plan provides a two tier benefit structure referred to as Schedules A and B as follows:

Schedule A Benefits: Classif ied employees who retire at or after age 60 with 10 years of credited service on
or before July 1, 2OOS. or at any age with 28 years of credited service are entitled to a retirement benefit payable
for life. The retirement benefit is a percentage of the linal average salary per year of credited service with a
maximum benefit of 80% of 'fin al average" salary . Final average salary is the three highest consecut ive years 01
eamed salary exclusive of overtime, bonuses, or severance pays. The retirement benefit is equal to 1,7
percent 01 their final average salary for each year of credited service up to 10 years, plus 1.9 percent of their
final average salary in excess of 10 years through 20 years. plus 3.0 percent of their final average salary in
excess of 20 years up 10 the 34111 year of service, plus 2.0 percent of their final average salary for the 3SItl year.
The percentage accrual a Schedule A member has earned as of September 30, 2009 will be frozen. Future
accruals will be earned under Schedule B. The members' benefit will be based on Ihe sum of credits, multiplied
by hislher final average salary .

Schedule B Benefits: Classified employees who were hired after July 1, 2005, or current employees with less
than 10 years of contr ibutory services on or before July 1. 2OOS. who attain at least 10 years of credited service.
will become entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life. The retirement benefi t is a percentage of
the final average salary per year of credited service with a maximum benefit of 75% of '1inal average" salary .
Final average salary is the three highest consecutive years of earned salary exclusive of overtime. bonuses. or
severance pays. The unreduced retirement benefit becomes available at age 65 and 10 years of service;
actuarially reduced retirement benefits become available at age 55 and 20 years of service . The retirement
benefit is equal to 1.6 percent of their final average salary for each year of credited service up to 10 years. plus
1.8 percent of their final average salary in excess of 10 years through 20 years. plus 2.0 percent of their final
average salary in excess of 20 years through 25 year of service, plus 2.25 percent of their final average salary in
excess of 26 years through 30 years of service, plus 2.5% of their linal average salary of 31 years of service
through the 37th year. The ERS plan also provides a survivor benefit to public school teachers via a "Teachers
Survivor Benefits Fund" in lieu of Social Security. The details of the survivor death benefit and other death
benefits are provided in the financial section of the Annual Financial Report 01 the Employees ' Retirement
System of Rhode Island for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 which can be found at www.ersrLorg.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH RHOQE !SLANQ

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS
JUNE 30,2012

12. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Employees' Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island ("ERS") (Continued)

Plan Description (Continued)

Rhode General laws set the contribution rates lor participating State employees at 9.5% 01 salary.
Annual contributions by both employees and the Slate on behalf 01 Ihose employees are determined by
actuaries and assessed as a percentage of participants' payroll. Plan members are required by State statute to
contribute 9.5% of their salary. The School Department's contributions are based on a percentage of annual
compensation of active members, half of which is payable by the State of Rhode Istand. The School
Department's contributions made for the years ended June 30, 2012,2011, 2010 are listed under contributions
below and were equal to the required contributions for each year. The employer contribution rates for ERS are
determined actuarial1y. Separate rates are determined for State Employees and for Teachers.

The amortized rate is the contribution required to amortize the unfunded actuarial liability over 21 years
as a level percent 01 pay. For the Teachers, the State of Rhode Island pay 40% 01 the rate. adjusted so that the
State pays the entire amortization charge for the 1990/91 and 1991192 deferrals, and the town employing the
Teacher pays the balance. The School Department was required to contribute 13.23%. 11.25% and 14.86% for
all lu ll-time employees for the fiscal years 2012. 2011 and 2010. respectively. The required contributions include
(a) normal costs; (b) payments to amortize the unfunded frozen actuarial accrued liability as of June 30. 1999
over 30 years; and (c) interest on the unfunded frozen actuarial liability. Normal cost is determined using the
entry age normal cost method with Irozen initial liability.

A variety of significant actuarial assumptions are used and these assumptions are summarized
below:

A. Mortality - 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table with mortality for disabled persons set equal to
the age 65 under the PSGe Table.

B. Investment return - 8.25%, compounded annually.

C. Salary increase - Salaries will increase at a rate of 4.50% - 13.25%, compounded annually.

D. Retirement aqe . Teachers are assumed to retire at the later of age 61 or completion of the
service requirements. Article 7 establishes a minimum retirement age of 62 for all future
hires. but this age must not be less Ihan under prior law.

E. Cost of living adjustments - 3.0% compounded annually beginning on the January t at
following a participant's third anniversary of retirement.

As prescribed by Rhode Island general law, the State pays the entire portion of the annual required
contribution attributable to the costs of contributions deferred by the State in prior years plus 40% of
contributions assessed to employers on payroll not reimbursable through Federal programs. For fisca l
year 2012. actuarial required contributions were 22.32% of the participant's salary. This resulted in
contribution rates paid by the State on behalf of the School Department of 9.09% 01 non-federally
reimbursable payrolls totaling $1 ,484,790 for the year ended June 30. 2012, which has been included as
revenues and expenditures in the School Department's unrestricted fund. The School Department
contributed the remaining 13.23% of the required 22.32%.

(CONTINUED)
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12. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Employees' RetIrement System of the State of Rhode Island ("ERS") (Continued)

Plan DescrIption (Continued)

The School Department does not have any investments or related party investments with the State Plan.

In accordance with GASB 27, "Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental
Employers," the Town has determined that there is and has been no net pension obligation related to the
Plan.

ContrIbutions

The School Department's required contributions and actual contributions made for the years ended
June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were as follows:

FISCAL
YEAR

ENDED

6130/2010
6130/20 11
6130/20 12

Defined Contribution Pension Plans

Defined Supplemental Plan

ANNUAL
REQUIRED

CONTRIBUTION

$ 1.981,787
$ 1.378,156
$ 1,632.606

ACTUAL
CONTRIBUTION

$ 1.981,787
$ 1.378.156
$ 1.632.808

PERCENTAGE
CONTRIBUTION

100%
100%
100%

The Town of Portsmouth has adopted a defined contribution money purchase plan lor all full time NAGE
local 280, PMEA local 871 members and non-union employees. The required contribution for the Town and
participants are 1.75% of earnings and 3.00% of eamings, respectively. During fiscal year 2011, contributions
made under this plan by participants and employer were $99,401 and $35,584, respectively.

Plan Description

The defined contribution money purchase plan provides funds to its participants' retirement, and to
provide funds for their Beneficiaries in the event of death. The benefits provided in this Plan shall be paid from
the Trust. For purposes of determining an Employee's initial or continued eligibility to participate in the Plan or
the nonforfeitable interest in the participant's account balance derived from employer contributions, an employee
will receive credit for the aggregate of all time period{s) commencing with the employee's first day 01
employment or reemployment and ending on a break in service. The first day of employment or reemployment is
the first day the employee performs an hour of service. An employee will also receive credit for any period of
severance of less than twelve consecutive months.

A. Plan Administrator - The ICMA Retirement Corporation

B. Plan Year- The twelve consecutive month period designated by the Town

C. Trust- The Trust created under Article VI of the Plan which shall consist of all of the
assets of the Plan derived from Employer and Participant contributions under the Plan,
pIus any income and gains thereon, less any losses, expenses and distribution to
Participants and Beneficiaries.

(CONTINUED)
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12. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Defined Contributi on Pension Plans (Continued)

Pollee Plan

The Town of Portsmouth has adopted a defined contribution money purchase plan lor all full time police
otftcera who were hired after July 1, 2010. The required contribution for the Town and participants is 8.00% of
earnings and 8.00% of earnings, respectively. During fiscal year 2012, contributions made under this plan by
participants and employer were $9,892 and $9,892, respectively.

Plan Descrip tion

The defined contribution money purchase plan provides funds to its participants' retirement, and to
provide funds for their Beneficiaries in the event of death. The benefits provided in this Plan shall be paid from
the Trust. For purposes 01determining an Employee's initial or continued eligibility to participate in the Plan or
the nonforfeitable interest in the participant's account balance derived from employer contributions, an employee
will receive credit for the aggregate of all time period(s} commencing with the employee's first day of
employment or reemployment and ending on a break in service. The first day of employment or reemployment is
the lirst day the employee performs an hour of service. An employee will also receive credit for any period of
severance 01 less than twelve consecutive months.

A. Plan Administrator - The ICMA Retirement Corporation

B. Plan Year- The twelve consecutive month period designated by the Town

C. Trust- The Trust shall consist of all of the assets of the Plan derived from Employer and
Participant contributions under the Plan, plus any income and gains thereon, less any
losses, expenses and distribution to Participants and Beneficiaries.

DPWPlan

The Town of Portsmouth has adopted a defined contribution money purchase plan for NAGE Local 280
members who were hired after July 1, 2010. The required contribution for the Town and participants is 8.00% of
earnings and 8.00% of earnings, respectively. During fiscal year 2012, contributions made under this plan by
participants and employer were $1,286 and $1,286, respectively.

Plan Description

The defined contribution money purchase plan provides funds to its participants' retirement, and 10
provide funds for their Beneficiaries in the event 01 death. The benefits provided in this Plan shall be paid from
the Trust. For purposes of determining an Employee's initial or continued eligibility to participate in the Plan or
the nonforfeitable interest in the participant's account balance derived from employer contributions, an employee
will receive credit for the aggregate of all lime period(s) commencing with the employee's first day of
employment or reemployment and ending on a break in service. The first day of employment or reemployment is
the first day the employee performs an hour of service. An employee will also receive credit for any period of
severance of less than twelve consecutive months.

(CONTINUED)
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12. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Defined Contribut ion Pension Plans (Cont inUed)

DPW Plan (Cont inued)

Plan Description (Continued)

A. Plan Administrator - The leMA Retirement Corporation

B, Plan Year- The twelve consecu tive month period designated by the Town

C. Trust- The Trust shall consist of all of the assets of the Plan derived from Employer and
Participant contributions under the Plan. plus any income and gains thereon, less any
losses, expenses and distribution to Participants and Beneficiaries,

Town Administrator p lan

On February 13, 2012. the Town of Portsmouth has adopted a defined contribution money purchase
plan for the Town Administrator, The required contribution for the Town and participants is 8,00% of earnings
and 8.00% of earnings. respectively, During fiscal year 2012. contributions made under this plan by participants
and employer were $3,877 and $3,877, respectively,

Plan Description

The defined contribution money purchase plan provides funds to its participants' retirement, and to
provide funds lor their Beneficiaries in the event of death. The benefits provided in this Plan shall be paid from
the Trust. For purposes of determining an Employee's initial or continued eligibility to participate in the Plan or
the nonforfeitable interest in the participant's account balance derived from employer contributions, an employee
will receive credit for the aggregate of all time period(s) commencing with the employee's first day of
employment or reemployment and ending on a break in service, The first day of employment or reemployment is
the first day Ihe employee performs an hour of service. An employee will also receive credit for any period of
severance of less Ihan twelve consecutive monlhs.

A. Plan Administrator - The ICMA Retirement Corporation

B, Plan Year- The twelve consecutive month period designated by the Town

C, Trust- The Trust shall consist of all of the assets of the Plan derived from Employer and
Participant contributions under the Plan, plus any income and gains thereon, less any
losses, expenses and distribution to Participants and Beneficiaries.

13. DEFERREO COMPENSATION PLA N

The Town offers its municipal employees a deferred compensation plan established in accordance with
the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457, The Plan, available to certain municipal employees,
permits the deferral of a portion of their salary until future years, The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency,

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Town implemented the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred
Compensation Plan. All assets and income of the plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the
participants and their beneficiaries, As a result, deferred compensation investments and the respective liability
have been removed from the Town's financial statements.

(CONCLUDED)
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TOWN OF PORTSMOUW. RHODE ISLAND

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

BUDGET AND ACnJAL - GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Appropriallon Encumbra nce a V......nc::e
Original Transf.... and Final Cvriod Favoreble

Budget AdditiOIUl Budge t "',,'" "'~
(Unfavorable)

Revunl,'lIs

Property taxes S 45.765.205 S S 45.785 .205 S 46.647.965 S S 662 .760

Inlergovernmental /evenue 959 .459 959.459 931.217 (28.242)

Lcanses, permits an<lfees 856.300 856.300 669.3 14 13.0 14

Fll1(l S & iortenures 254 .700 254.700 638.575 383.675

Earnings on ,nvestments ".000 ".000 10.616 (9.384)

Other revenues 1.923.602 28.000 1.951.602 1,559,850 (391.152)

TOUlI revenues 49.799.266 28.000 49,827.266 50.657 .537 830.27 1

EJlpend i lure s

Cuffont

General governmenl 4.657. 426 (16.500) 4.640 .926 4.409 .952 230 .974

PubliC salal)' 8.907.743 " .500 8.944.243 8.82:2.646 121.397

Pubhc works 2.403.378 (20.000) 2.383.378 2.304 .Q51 78.721

CommuniI)' services:

Aecfaalioo. parks an<l9rOUllds 506.954 506.954 521,428 (14 ,474)

Publoc alld social servICeS 617.568 6 17.588 560.760 ae.ece
OeDt servce 3.257,689 3.257.889 3.166.333 9 1,556

TolJll expend/lure s 20.350.978 20.350. 978 19,805 .990 5« '"

b eau (deficiency) 01 revenues

ol'e,axpendlluntS 29,448.288 28000 29,476,288 30.851.547 1.375.259

Ott.., llnsnclng s ources (UNS)

usnsle, be_n fund s (29.448 .288 ) (28.000) (29.476.288 ) (28.260.748 ) 1,215 .540

T0/41other linancing ~u~. (UN') (29.448.288) (28.000) (29.476.288) (28.260,748 ) 1,215.540

£lice" (dflliciflncy) 01 re venues and other
financ Ing s ourr:e s ove, expenditures s nd

Other ll nanc lng UNS S S S S 2.590.799 S S 2.590 ,799
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TOWN OF PORTSMQUTH. RHODE ISLAND

REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

BUDGET AND ACTUAL · SCHOOL UNRESmlCTED FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012

Encumbrances Variance

OrIgina l A M ' Co"'''' Favorable

"""gel Budget Actual ""~ (Unla'lOf8ble)

Revenues

Inlergovemmental revenue , 6.233.255 , 6.233.255 , 5.923.570 , s (309 ,685)
Slate FiSCal SfabilizatiOn Funds 122.259 122.259 122.259

Other revenues 1.061.252 1.061.252 1.141.336 80.084

Total revenues 7.416.766 7.416.766 7.187.165 (229.60 1)

EJtpendltures

Education 37 ,164.859 37 .164.859 34.635.427 89.25 1 2,440 .181

Tot /ll eKpendlt /JrH 37.164.859 37.164 .859 34.635.427 89 ,251 2,440.181

EJtcess (dt!flcIMCy) 0' revenues

OVN flKpend/lUres (29.748.093) (29.748.093) (27.448.262) (89.251) 2,2 10.580

Other "mmclng $OU~S (U$H):

Transfer from Geneta l Fund 29,398 .093 29.396.093 29 ,398.093

Transfer to Gene ral Fund (1,000 .000) (1.000 .000)

Transfer to other funds (129.436) (129.436)

Use of accumulated lund balance 350.000 350.000 (350,000)

Tols ' olhN flrJIJnclng SOUI'CfI'S (usn ' 29,748.093 29 ,748.093 28 ,268,657 (1.479.436)

EKcess (~f1clency) 0' revltnues and other

financIng Sou~sOVN eKpendltures sod

other flnsnclng uses , , , 820,395 , (89.251) , 73 1.144
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raWN OF PORTSMOUTH

Required Supplementary Inform ation

Notes to Combining Statement or Revenues and Expend itures-Budget
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Budgetary-GAAP Reporting Reconciliation

In accordance with Town's Home Rule Charter, the Town Administrator must present to the Town Council a
recommended annual budget tor the operations of all municipal departments no later than 90 days prior to the
commencement of each fiscal year, The recommended budqet must include the School Department's annual budget
as approved by the School Committee. A tinal budget must be adopted by the Town Council by June so".

Budgets are adopted for the General Fund and the School Department's unrestricted fund (a special revenue
fund) on a legally enacted budgetary basis which differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAP) in several regards. Budgets are adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting,
except that budgetary expenditures include encumbrances in the year incurring the commitment to purchase, and
bUdgetary revenues include subsidies from fund balance previously recognized under U.S. GAAP.

Encumbrances are not liabilities and, therefore, are not recognized as expenditures under U.S. GAAP until
receipt of materials or services. For budgetary purposes, unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at
year end and outstanding encumbrances are included in the bUdgetary expenditures in the year committed. The Town
reserves a portion 01 fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements equal to outstanding encumbrances
at year end.

Budgetary Compliance:

Municipal budgetary control is legally enforceable at the department level. An appropriation transler between
departments and intra-departmental transfers of municipal appropriations require approval of the Town Council.
School Department budgetary control is legally enforced only at the Unrestricted Fund Level; inter-departmental
transfers may be made without School Committee approval. In addition to limits enforced by the budget, the Town's
Home Rule Charter further restricts municipal expenditures relative to budgeted revenues.

The recreation. parks and grounds exceeded the appropriation by $14,474. There were no other municipal
department expenditures that exceeded appropriations (after approved transfers) for the year ended June 30, 2012.

(CONCLUDED)
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TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH, RHODE ISLAND

Required Supplementary Information
Pension Plan

Schedule of Funding Progress
June 30, 2012

Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuaria l UAALas a

Actuarial Accrued percentage

Actuarial Value of Liabi lity Unfunded Funded Covered Of Covered

Valuation Assets -Entry Age AAL(U AAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

!llllll LBl !lll ltll 1llilll l<l ~

1/1/1999 $ 11,604,444 $ 14,874 ,442 $ 3.269.996 78.0% $ 5,431 ,775 60.2%
1/112000 s13,366,94 1 $ 16,682,652 $ 3,315,711 80.1% $ 5,656,718 58.6%
1/112001 $ 14,764,504 $ 20, 772,7 11 $ 6,008 ,207 71.1% $ 6,121,015 98.2%
1/112002 $ 15,775,149 $ 22 ,798 ,424 $ 7,023,275 69.2% $ 6,347,972 110 .6%
1/112003 s15,770,989 $ 24 ,582 ,923 $ 8,811,934 64 .2% $ 6,619,388 133 .1%
1/1/2004 $ 19.407.779 $ 28.684.523 $ 9.276.744 67 .7% $ 6.696.215 138.5%
1/112005 $22,45 1,034 $ 33.089.944 $ 10,638 ,910 67.8% $ 6.732.372 158.0%
7/1/2006 $ 25.129.703 $ 38,459.122 $13,329 ,419 65.3% $ 7,767,018 171.6%
7/1/2007 $ 27.628.308 $ 43.087.640 $ 15,459,332 64.1% $ 7,958,303 194 .3%
7/112008 $ 30,441,304 $ 47,736,36 1 $ 17,295,057 63.8% $ 8,221 ,692 210.36%
7/112009 $ 31.609.237 $ 51,284,315 $ 19.675,078 61.6% $ 8.596.994 228 .86%
7/112010 $ 32,779,646 $ 54,054,944 $ 21.275.298 60.6% $ 8.507.853 250.07%
7/112011 s35,266,853 s 57,377,287 $ 22,110,434 6 1.5% $ 8,781 ,718 251.78%
7/112012 $ 36,496,79 1 $ 73.686.863 s 37,190,072 49.5% $ 8,388 ,446 443.35";"

(CONTINUEOI
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TOWN Of PORTSMOUTH. RHODE ISLANa

Required Supplementary Information
Pension Plan

Schedule o' Funding Progres8
June 30, 2012

Schedule of Employer Contribution

Actuarial Percent
Valuation Requ ired Actual 01ARC

Qoa Conlribl.rtioo Contribution Contributed

1/111999 $ 802,090 $ 831 ,195 103.63%
1/112000 $ 799 ,190 5 811 ,401 101.53%
1/112001 s 1,088,547 51 ,088,547 100.00%
1/112002 5 1,162,063 $ 1,162 ,063 100.00%
1/112003 $ 1,292,432 51 ,292,432 100.00%
1/112004 $ 1,370,682 5 1,370,682 100.00%
1/112005 s 1,552 ,168 $1 ,552,168 100.000/0
7/112006 5 1,671,713 51 ,671,713 100.00%
7(112007 $ 2,088,317 $ 2,088,317 10().OOOIo
7(112008 $ 2,348 ,316 52,346,316 100.000/0
7(112009 $ 2,590,523 $ 2,590 ,523 100.00%
7(112010 $ 2,514,420 $ 2,514,420 100.00%
7(11201 1 $ 2,662,801 $ 2,662,801 100.00%

(CONTINUED)



TOWN Of PORTSMOUTH

Required Supplementary Information

Pension Plan

Schedule of Fund ing Progress

Yesr End6d Jun9 3D, 2012

The inform ation presented in the required supplementary schedu le was determined as part of the annual
actuarial valuation at the dale indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is as follows:

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method

Actuar ial assumptions:

Investment rate of return

Projected salary increase

Cost-of- living adjustments

Assumed Retirement Age

JUly 1, 20 12

Entry Age Normal Cost Method

Level parcentaga-closed

27 years

Market with gainlloss recognition over live years

6.75"10 per annum

Percentage based on age

Public works employees -2.0%
Fire employees (retired before 6/30 /2007) - 2.0%
Fire employees (retired after 613012007) - 3.0"10
Police emplo yees - 3.0%
Town hall employees - 2.0"10
School management and Non-Certified employees - 1.7 %
Town management (retired belore 7/112004) - 2.0%
Town management (retired after 7/1/2004) - 3.0%

Employees are assumed to retire as follows :
Police, Fire, School , Public Works and Town - Rates based on
length of service

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF PORTSMQUTH

Required Supplementary Information

Other Post Employm ent Benefits

Schedule or Funding Progress

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actuarial UAALas a
Actuarial Accnec percentage

Actuarial Valueof Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Of Covered
Valualion Assets -EntryAge M L (UML) Rallo Payroll Payroll

ll<lo W ~ &>l (ll!llJ ~ ((b-aYsi)

Municipal
employees
7/112008 NlA $13.026.759 $13.026.759 NlA $5.510.188 236.4%
7/112009 NlA 513.026,759 $13.026,7 59 NlA 55.510.188 236 .4%
7/112010 5153.249 513.248 .340 $13.095.091 1.2% 56.383. 155 205.2'0/0
7/112011 $203.392 512.527.599 $12.324.207 1.6% $6.574.650 187.5%

School
employees

7/112008 0 54.514,458 54.514,458 N/A N/A NlA
7/112009 0 54.514,458 54,514,458 N/A N/A NlA
711 /2010 0 $10 ,258 .675 $ 10,258.675 N/A $18.890,918 54.3%
7/1/2011 0 $7.207.872 $7.207.872 N/A $19.457.646 37.0%

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN Of PORTSMOUTH

Required Supplementary Inform ation

Other Post Employment Benefits

Schedule 01Funding Progress

Yest Ended June 30,2011

Actuarial Percent
Valuation Required Actual 01ARC

IBlo Contribution Contribution Contributed

Municipal
employees
6/30/2009 $ 1,569,039 $462,590 29.5%
6/30/2010 $1,569 ,039 $645.276 41.1%
6/30/20 11 $1,345,177 $792,174 58.9%
6/30/2012 $1,246,914 $953,389 76.3%

School
employees
6130/2009 $511,670 $299,602 58.5%
6/30/2010 $5 11,670 $322,804 63.1%
6/30/2011 $1,071,313 $653,712 61.1%
6130/2012 $592,41 0 $567,085 95.7%

69

(CONTINUED)



Other Supplementary Information1 1



TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH. BHQDE ISLAND

CombinIng Balance Sheet
Non -Major Governmental Funds

June 3D, 2012

E · f

Total
S pecia l Capital NonmaJor

ASSETS Revenue Project Permanent Governmental
Funds Funda Funds Funds

Cash, cash equivalents and investments s 206,495 s 127,900 $ 145,267 s 47 9,662
Accounts receivable 459.222 459.222
Due from led eral and state gove rnments 77 ,68 1 77,68 1

Due from other funds 1,134,895 694,504 1,829,399

TOTAL ASSETS s 1.8 78.293 $ 822,404 s 145.267 s 2.845.964

LlABIUTlES

Accounts payabl e s 25,953 s 2. s s 25 ,981

Accrued expenses 42,604 42,604

Due 10 other funds 885,475 146,365 1.031 ,840
Deterred revenue 270,425 270,425

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1.224,457 146,393 1,370 .850

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable 4,82 1 4,821

Restricted 707 ,273 694,536 1,401,809
Committed 11 1,776 111,776

Assigned
Unassigned (53,437 ) ( 130,30 1) 140,446 (43 .292)

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 653.836 676.0 11 145.267 1,475,114

TOTAL LlABILmES AND FUND BALANCE s 1.878 .293 s 822. 404 s 145,267 s 2.845,964
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TOW OF PORTSMQUTH. RHODE /SLANQ

Combining Sfatement ot R~"'Ifflm!~ Other Financing Sources , E1tpeodltu,n and ethel" Financing U."., and Change, In Fund Balance
Non-Malor Govftmmenfal Funds

June 30, 20 12

Total
Special Capita l Nonmajor
Revenue Project Permanent Govern mental

Funds Fundi Fund. Fundi
REVENUES:
Slate aid and grants (Intergovernmental) s 2.086.204 , , s 2,086 .204
Charges lOtservices 108.639 108 .639
Impact aid
Investment and interest income 91 1,14 1 1,238
Conl ribu1~s and private grants 71 ,261 71 ,261
Other revenue 3 .0 \8 3,018

TOTAL REVENUE S 2.269.122 91 1,147 2,270,360

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 19.153 19,153
Public safety 91,928 91,928
Public worlls 48,373 46,373
Education 1,698 .805 1.698.805
Community services 148 .698 146,698
Caprtal e~penditures 123 .8 71 775.492 899,363
Debt Issuance costs
Park & recreanon 675 67'

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2.129,503 775,492 2,904.995

EllCesS of revenue over{undef) expendit ures
bef ore transf8'l"S 139.619 (775.401) 1.147 (634.635)

omer fInancIng sources (u&lls) :
Transfers Irom other funds 110.379 403.654 514.233
Transters to other lundS (110.199) (491.378) (601.577)
Note Proceeds 0
Bond Proceeds 1.050.000 1.050.000
Bond premiums 0
Net Other fInancing sources (uses) .eo 96 2,476 962,656

Excess of revenue. and other 80urces 0 '1'8'1"

(under) upendlturltll and oth8'l" un . 139 ,799 187 ,075 1,147 328.02 1

FUND BALANCES, BEGINING OF YEAR 5 14 .037 488 ,938 144, 120 1,147 .093

FUND BALANCES, ENDING OF YEAR s 653.836 s 67 6.011 s 145 .2e7 s 1.475, 114
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TOWN OF PQRTSMQUm. RHODE ISLAND

carob/nina StafftmcwC pCNttt AasetJ
Non-Major Proprietary Funds

Junt!l30.2012

F ·l

ASSETS
Current assets:
Due from ome r funds

Totsf current assets

TOTAL ASSE7S

$

Summar SChool
Enrichment Fund

s

Summer School
Rem edia l Fund

10,171
10,171

10,171

$

Total

10,171
10,171

10,171

LlABJLmES
Current lIabilltles:
Prepaid tui tion

Total current liabilities

TOTALLlABlunES

NET ASSETS
Unres tricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

10,275 10.275
10,275 10.275

10,275 10.275

(104 ) (104)

s $ (104) s (104)
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TOWN OF PORTSMQUm RHODE ISLAND

Com bining Statem fHIt o f Revenue . , EXpfHIB41J and Changes In Net Au.t.
Non-Majo r Propri etary Fund,

Ear the YS1Jr ended June 30, 2012

Summer SChool Summ er SChool
Enrichment Fund Remed ial Fund Total

Operating Revenue. :
Intergo vernmental
Other revenues
Charges lor services • • 15,908 s 15,908
Total OpM. lIng Revenues 15,908 15.908

OpfHlJtlng EXpenIJ8lJ:
Educa tion SO,S3S SO,S3S
Total OpfHsrfng ExpentJ• • 50.535 SO,S3S

Incom e from 0pfKlIt /on. (34.627) (34 .627)

Non-optmltlng Revenue. (ExJ'fH/sfI.):

Transf ers in (out) 27.895 51.540 79,435

Chang(l ln net su et. 27 ,895 16,913 44 ,B08

Net au et• • beginn ing 01 the Y68r (27.895) (17,017) (44.912)

Net asset• • endIng 01 the year • • (104) • (104)
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TOWN OF POBTSMQ UU1 RHO DE ISLAND

C<Jmblnlng Statement of C.uh Floln
Non-Mllior Pro prietary Funds

For the yea, endtHl June 30, 201:l

,.,

Summer SChool Summer School
Enrichment Fund Remedi al Fund Tolal

Cash flows from operating IICflvltles:
Cash received from customers , , 26,183 , 26,183
Inlergovernmenlal
Cash payments to suppliers lo r goods and services (50.535) (50.535)
Net callh /Ju d by op«'al/ng actlvlt/es (24,352) (24,352)

Cash flowa from non-capitat fl nllflc/ng /JC!llIlIIes:
Opemtinglransfers (lo) Irom othe r lunds 27 ,895 51.540 79.435
Interfund borrowings (27.B95) (27, 188) (55,08 3)

Hat clI sh pro vided by non-capil., ' Inene/fl g IICI/I/Illes 24,352 24.352

Net Increas e In clJ.h 0 0

Caah and cash f1fqu!valtmtl, bftglnnlng 0' the yur 0 0

ca ah and cash equlVl.'enttl, end ot the r IJlJf , , ,
Reconciliation 0'net Incom(l to n~ cash provld«! by operating IICtlvltle. :

Income Irom operations , , (34.627) , (34,627)

Adjus tmen ls to reconcile operating Income 10net
cash provided by (used lor) operating activities:

Changes in assets and liabilities :
increase in prepaid nntcns to.275 10.275

Total adjustments 10.275 10.275

Net cesh used by opertill/ng SCU",mes , , (24.352) , (24.352)
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TOWN OF poRTSMOUTH RHODe ISLAND

ComtNnlng sr.,fHNt7f of Net Asset.
De fined Con tribution P«Ialon PlIJM

June 30. 20'2

Dell .... T~

Suppl emem.l DPW Pollee Admlnl.trator
Plan Pl.n PI~ Plen Tolil

dUm
Investments. allillr value $ 2.269.553 $ 2.568 $ 20..... $ 1.748 $ 2.300 .431

TOTAL ASSETS 2.269.553 2,568 20,.... 7.746 2.300,~1

NET ASSETS
Held In trust for pension cenems 2,269.553 2.568 20,.... 7,746 2.300. 431

Tot.1nllt ...el. 2.269.553 2,568 20..... 7,7 46 2,300. 431

TotlJll//ltNllt/elJlind net •••.,. $ 2.26 9,553 $ 2,568 $ 20,.... $ 7,7 46 $ 2,300.431
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TOWN Of PORTSMQUTH RHODE IS LANQ

Combining Sratamenl 0' Changes In Net A.set.
Del /ned Con lrlbutlon Pension Plan.

For the ytMrended June 30, 2012

Defined Town
Supplemen tal DPW Police Administrator

Add ition . : Ptan Plan Plan Plan Tot al
ccembcncos:
Emp loyer $ 34,020 $ 1.286 $ 9.892 $ 3.an $ 49,075
Plan mernbee 102.554 1,286 9,892 3.an 117,609

Tolal contributions 136.574 2.572 19 .784 7.754 166,684
Investment Income:
Net gaJn (loss) 01'1value 01 inves tments 63."'" (4) ." (8) 64.205

Net investmen t Income (loss) 63."'" (4) 813 (8) 64.205

Total add/llon/l 199.978 2.568 20.591 7.746 230 ,889

Deduction. :
Benefils paid 217.272 217,272
Administrative and olher 17.533 33 17,566

Torsi df'ductlon/l 234 .805 33 234.638

Chang.. In net asUl. (34.827) 2.568 20.564 7.746 (3,949)

Nft aSHf• • beginn ing of YIMr 2.304.380 2.304 ,380

N6f lJuet/l · ending 0 ' Ihe yur $ 2.26 9.553 $ 2.568 $ 20.564 $ 7.746 $ 2,300.431
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TOWN OF POB TSMQUTH. RHOD'ISLANQ

Combining Statement 0' ChlJn~.'n A.-eta and LI"bI/W".
A!1*'C)' Fund.

For lhe Y••' end«l June 30, 20'2

Town Ac'lYlty Fund.
Beqlnnlng ''''''''eee-ce Additions DedUCIiona "'.~

So!! AQC!n"r fund

Mllill
A<x:ounl' fl&Cll"-able S 22 1.071 S 40.600 S 85 .050 , 176.621

Lener s 01Cred~ 9.100 9, 100

TOTAL ASSeTS , 230. 171 S "'.600 S 85.050 , 185.727

LIABil ITY
l)eposolS Held InClI!IlodV tor Olhoe" S 230,171 S 40.600 , 85 ,050 S 185.727

t.11zrta ShU. AId

=Accounts R9C&ivablB S , 102,566 S 102.566 S

LIADIL IO
Depo9iIS Held In Cust«ly lor OlllEtr. , S 102.566 , 102,566 S

GM« pPpo.I' AgfOCt fIIafI

=A<x:ouolS receivable , lS.SOO S aceoc S 33."'" S 19.500

TOTAL ASSETS , 18.500 S aceoc S 33."'" S 19.500

l lA8!UTlfS
Account. payable S 0."'" , S 0."'" ,
Deposits Held in CI,IlI!Ody lor Others 17.000 aa.sco ".000 19.500

TOTAL LIA81LIT IES S 18.500 S acsoc S 33."'" , 19,500

Pcp bfff CqurtAQIW' fund

=Cash and cash equivalents S , 101,459 , S 10 1,459

llABIUTY
Oepoaits Held In Custody fO!' Olhers S S 101.459 S S 101,459

a lta PlQrOtI7!fQl 0m7IJ'

=Accounts reoeivable S 600 S 0.,"" S ,.. , 0.200

liABILITY
DeiX>s'lS Held In Custody lor Oltlet' S 600 S 0.'"" , ,.. S ' .200

Pt!K O!t eotntfund

=cash and cash equivalents S 100,139 , sea S , 100.40 '

LIABILITY
D&pos;ts Held In ClI$Iody IQ. OU",., S 100./39 , ", S S 100.401

TOTAL TOW ACDV!TY AGENCY FUNDS

=Cash $ 100.139 S 101 ,721 S S 20 1.860
Accounts receivable 240.1n 178 .7 16 221.566 197,327
Leiters 01Credit 9 .100 9 ,100

TOTAL ASSETS $ 349. 416 $ 260.437 S 22 1.566 S 408.287

UABIUU
Accounts payable S ' .500 $ S ' .500 $
Deposits Held in Custody for Others 347.916 280.437 220,066 408.287
TOTAL U ABIU TlES S 349.416 S 280. 437 $ 22 1.566 S 408.287
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TOWN OF PQRTSMQUm. RHODE /SLAND

Comb in ing Statement of Chan ges in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2012

Schoo l Act ivi ty Fund s
Beginning Ending
Balance Add itions Deductions Balance

Elmhurst

ASSETS
Citizens Bank Checking $ 9,6 13 $ 22 $ 9.635 $

LIABILITIES
Depos its Held in Custody for Others $ 9.613 $ 22 $ 9.635 $

Hathawav

ASSETS
Citizens Bank Checking $ 810 $ 4.235 s $ 5,045

LIABILITIES
Depos its Held in Cus tody for Others $ 810 s 4,235 $ $ 5,045

Melvill e

ASSETS
Citizens Bank Checking $ 10,922 $ 6,114 $ 3,476 $ 13,560
Citizens Bank Savlnqs 2,689 2 2,687

s 13 ,611 $ 6.114 $ 3,476 s 16,247

L1ABILIT1ES
Depos its Held in Custody for Othe rs $ 13.611 s 6,114 s 3,478 $ 16,2 47

PM'

ASSETS
Cit izens Bank Checking $ 15,437 s 35, 150 $ 23.555 s 27.032

LIABILITIES
Deposi ts Held in Custody for Others s 15,437 $ 35, 150 $ 23,555 s 27,032

PHS

ASSETS
PHS CO $ 50,000 $ 50,000
Citizens Bank Checking 162,322 $ 134,678 $ 153,378 143,622
Citizens Bank Savings 3,970 3,970

$ 2 16,292 s 134 ,678 $ 153,378 $ 197,592

U ABIUTlES
Depos its Held in Custody lor Others s 216,292 $ 134,678 $ 153,378 $ 197,592
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TOWN OF PORTSMQUTH, RHODE ISLAND

Combining Statement of Changes In As sets and Liabilities
Agency Fun ds

For the yesr ended JUM 30, 2012

School Activ ity Funds
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance

INTERSCHQOL ATHLEPCS

ASSETS
Accounts Receivable s 45.711 s s s 45,717

L1ABILmeS
Deposits Held in Custody lor Others • 45,717 S S S 45.717

TOTAL SCHOOL ACPVIIY AGENCY FUNDS

Mill
Cas h S 255.763 S 180.199 S 190,046 S 245,916
Accounts Rece ivable 45 ,7 17 45,717

TOTAL ASSETS S 301.480 s 180,199 S 190,046 S 291,633

l lABIUTlES
Deposits Held In Custody 'or Others S 301,480 s 180,199 S 190,046 • 291,633

TOTAL UABIUTlES s 301,460 S 180,199 s 190.046 s 291,633



SCHEDULE" r
TOWN OF PORTSMOUTH. RHODE ISLA ND

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAXES RECEiVABLE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20 12

Balance
Tax Roll Unco llected 2011 Aba tements & Amount 10be Current Year Balance

Y«r July 1, 20 11 Assessment AddtjQns Adjustments Collected Collections ~ June 30. 2012

2011 , 45,80 7,376 , 86,874 , 204,841 , 45,689,409 , 43,972,304 , 27,078 , 1,744 ,183
2010 , 3,00 1,691 4,146 227,553 2,n8,284 2,647,532 600 13 1,35 2

2009 127,923 4,175 79 ,445 52 ,653 88 ,049 79,333 43,93 7

2008 43 ,713 4,972 1,779 46.906 10,936 2,486 38 ,456
2007 31,733 5.085 2,219 34,599 9,464 3 ,349 28 ,484
2006 18 ,815 18,815 537 18.278
2006 16,901 16,90 1 16 ,901
2004 13 ,393 13,393 3 13 ,390
2003 14,864 14,864 274 14,590
2002 13,269 13,269 13 ,269
2001 49,835 49,835 113 49 ,722
2000 37,733 37,614 11. 11.
1999 (71) 71 71

Tota l 3,369,670 , 45.807 .376 • 105.252 • 553 ,380 • 48.729.118 • 46 ,729 ,402 s 112,846 2,1 12,562
l ess: Allo wance lor

Uncollectible accounts (499 ,65 7) (340 ,656)

N" , 2,870,213 • 1,771,906

SChedu le of property va lua tion 8S88S&OO as of December 31, 2010: Valuation l evy
Real property • 3,194 ,188,000 , 43,105 ,307
Moior vehicles 167,343 ,161 1,88 1,879
Tangible personal property 58,963,767 820 ,190

Total 3,420 ,494,928 45,807,376
l ess: Exemptions and motor vehicle phase ou t

Real property (94,87 1,230)
Motor vehicles (83 ,697,717)
Tangible per sonal property (2,276)

Total • 3,24 1,923 ,705 • 45,807,376
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